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INTERNATIONAL MILITARY TRIBUNAL 
FOR THE FAR EAST 

Court House of the Tribunal 
War Ministry Building 

Tokyo, Japan 

The Tribunal met, pursuant to adjournment, 

at 0930. 

一 一 

Appearances: 

For 

For 

For 

The Accused: 

All 

represented by 

the 

the 

the 

Tribunal, same as before
t 

Prosecution Section, same as before, 

Defense Section, same as before. 

present except OKAWA, Shianei, who is 

his counsel. 

(English to Japanese and Japanese 

to English interpretation was made by the 

Language Section, IMIFE.) 

24 
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MARSHAL OF THE COURT: Th& International 

Military Tribunal for the Far East is now in session. 

THE PRESIDENT: Major Moore. 

LANGUAGE ARBITER (Major Moore): Mr. Presi-

dent ,with' the permission of the Tribunal we present 

the following language corrections. As these have 

already been distributed, only those items indicated 

which affect the transcript wi.ll be read at this 

time. 

Record page 15,806: Lino 1,substitute 

"of" for "from"；line 2, de^v^e '.'SrpeDditureつline 

9, substitute "of" for "from*
1

5 line 10, delete 

"expenditure." 

Record page 1 5 , 8 1 1 : L i n e s 6 and 7， delete 

from "Manchurian" to "expenditures" and substitute 

"Secret Funds of the Manchurian Incident Account." 

Record page 15,812: Lines 3 and 4,-

delete from "Manchurian" to "Expenditures" and 

substitute "Secret Funds of the Fanchurisn Incident 

Account." 

Exhibit 2214, record page l?,8l5： The 

names founr
1

 in this document ere in the original 

German, 

Record page 15,817： Lines 15 and 16, 

delete translator
 1

 a note. 
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Exhibit 2215, record pnge 15,322: Line 

15, substitute "substantially along" for "fairly 

strongly in." 

Record page 15,823: Line 17, substitute 

"the ideal" for "your ideals." 

Record page 15， 824: Line 6, delete ”what 

you would say." 

Record page 15,825： Line 24, substitute 

"necessarily" for "by all means.
11 

Ivlr. President, we hsve a few more items 

to present to the Tribunal, if the Tribunal please. 

Record pege 14,386： Line 22, there appear 

the words "was KIMURA War Minister,’' This pbrase 

was put into Japanese by the interpreter so that 

tbe question would mean "was
 T

ぐIMURA acting for 

the War Minister." 

The Tribunal is esVed to take note of this 

point. 

Erhibits 270 and 2235, two translations 

of the same original Japanese, ！ n a v e been referred 

to the Arbitration Board. From a spot check we 

find that either trar.sl&tion is acceptable。 But 

since exhibit 2235 is a slightly more exact render-

ing we recomnend that it be accented as the official 

translation. 
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THE PRESIDENT: Thank you, Major. Those 

corrections will be made. 

Mr. Tavenner. 

迪 . T A V E N N E R : General Vasiliev is here 

this morninf and would like to make a statement. 

THE PRESIDENT: General Vasiliev. 

MAJOR GENERAL VASILIEV: If the Court 

please, the gist of our motion made in court on 

January 17 is as follows: 

During the presentstion of our evidence in 

the prosecution esse we cancel]ed temporarily some 

of the documents on various matters and we did not 

present them because we did not have the documents 

in due form. 

Hr. President suggested that we present 

the whole evidence dealir.ざ with the metter later. 

On this ground Finister Golunsky said we should 

omit this group of documents witト the understanding 

that we should have an opportunity of presenting 

them et a later date. 

I respectfully inviie the Tribunal
1

s 

attention to pares 7748 and 7749 of the record of 

October 1 5 , 1 9 4 6 . I am informed that these 

documents have now been found and will be sent to 

us from Moscow at the end of January, after having 
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been put in due form, which means that we shall 

get ther in the middle of February. 

This is probably connected with the fact 

that during the war the archives were transferred 

deep into the country and are nov being trans-

ferred back, which makes it hard to use their. 

I am speaking of several documents deal-

ing with subversive activities of the Japanese on 

the Chinese Eastern railroad, with an undeclared 

war of aggression waged in the Nomongan area, with 

subversive activities of the Japanese against the 

USSR which were carried on in the Far East, and 

with the preparation of war against the USSR. 
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I deemed it my duty to inform the Tribunal 

about this in order to leave no doubt in the minds 

of the Tribunal. 

We have no intention of holding open the 

prosecution case until the Russian documents arrive. 

If that was the understanding of the Court we pro-

bably aid not quite clearly express our opinion. 

• | 

As I understand it some of these documents 

may be presented in the course of the cross-examination i 

. ' | 

of the accused, while the others may be presented in 

rebuttal. 

I, however, will be glad to follow any 

ruling of the Court on that matter. Withdrawing my 

motion on this point, I request the Tribunal to take 

my today's statement into consideration. 

THE PRE3IIENT; This application Is 

unnecessary so far as the documents in question can be 

got in during cross-examination or b y way of rebuttal. 

However, no doubt you are not sure about being able 

to get in any document that w a y , ano this application 

is practically necessary. On this matter we are, of 

course, bound by the Charter but not by any technical 

rules. 

Lo I understand that the new documents will 

be in substance the same as those already before the 
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Court? 

MAJOR GENERAL VASILIEV: Yes, your Honor, 

in substance they will be the same. 

THE PR3SIEENT: The defense know what the 

new documents will be, in substance? 

I must take the word of the Russian nrosecutor 

ttiat the documents are in substance the sane, those 

already before the Court and those proposeG to be 

tendered later. 

Our whole purpose must be to insure that the 

defense are not prejudiced in any way. They will not 

be prejudiced if they move this Court on the assumption 

that the fresh documents will be admitted later if 

the Charter permits. I come to no conclusion about 

that without consulting mv colleagues. 

MAJOR GENERAL VASILIEV: Your Honor, ^e will 

be glad to follow any ruling of the Court on that 

matter as to the possible time of presentation of these 

fresh documents. 

IB.. LOGAN: If the Tribunal please. 

THE PRESIDENT: M r . Logan. 

M R . LOGANs If my recollection is correct, 

there ore a number of oocuments which were in evidence 

tentatively as offered by the Russian prosecutors. 

There were also a number of documents which were not 
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permitted to be introduced in evidence, were merely 

marked for identification. We do not know without 

further reference to tho recera and a list from the 

Russian prosecutors as to which documents they are 

referring on this motion. 

In any event, they hava had three months 

since this Court made its ruling with resnect to all 

those documents to get theE hero. In our motions to 

dismiss we have taken the record as it exists today, 

and we see no reason why tho prosecution should be 

permitted to introduce rore docuiaents on tho defendants 

case. When they rest, they should rest for all 

purposes. 

MAJOR GENERAL VASILIEV2 I roall\r don't 

know to what documents my learned colleague refers. 

All our documents were admitted in oviaence and we 

have strictly followed all rulings of the Court and 

have not violated thorn so fqr and have no intention 

of doing it in the future. 

As far as the presentation of fresh documents 

is concerned, we hope that it 呵ill bo possible to do 

in the course of the cross-examination of the accused 

or in rebuttal; ana I am quite satisfied with the 

remarks M r . President made on that matter. 

THE PRSSItENT: The Tribunal will consider the 
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matter. 

Mr. Higgins, is M r . Carr in the court? 

MR. HIGGINS: We will have him sent for, 

air. President. 

THE PRESIDENT； He moved a motion on which 

the Court has come to a decision, and I wish to give 

the decision. 

M R . HIGGINS: Wo have sent for him, U r . 

President. 

THE PRESILENTt Well, he may take some time 

to get here, so you had better proceed with the presen-

tation of your evidence. 

腿 . H I G G I N S : M r . Lopez will proceed for 

the prosecution. 
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March of 1 9 3
4

. エ was promoted to Lieutenant Colonel 

in 1932. 

»'Q. G-2? What is that? 

"A. I n t e l l i g e n c e .エ then went to the First 

Infantry Regiment (Tokyo) and remained there until 

March of 1 9 3 5 .エ was transferred to the War Depart-

ment Military Affairs Bureau, remaining there until 

June of 1936. From June of 1936 until March of 

1937，I s a member of the staff of the Kwantung 

Army. In 1936 I was promoted to C o l o n e l . M a r c h of 

1937 until November of the same year I was attached 

to G-3 (operations) in the Tokyo General Staff. 

From November 1937 until July 1938, I was the Adju-

tant of the General Staff of the Central China 

Expeditionary Army. Fror) July of 1938 until October 

of 1939, I was the Adjutant of the General Staff with 

the North China Area Army. In 1938 I became major 

general. In October of 1939 I v/as appointed Chief 

of the Military Affairs Bureau. 

"Q. Then in April 1942 you left your office 

as Chief of the Military Affairs Bureau and what 

was your next position? 

"A. I became Coriander of the KONOYE Division 

(Sumatra.) 

"Q. How long were you there? 
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"A. I remained in Sumatra from 19^2 until 

October of 1944. Then in October 1944 I went to 

the Philippines as Chief of Staff for the 14th Area 

Army. In 194-2 I became lieutenant general. In 

September 1945, I was taken prisoner at the surrender, 

"Q. General, from March 1937 to November 1937， 

were you Chief of the Operations Section in the 

General Staff here in Tokyo? 

"A. Yes. I was not the Chief cf Operations. 

I was attached to Operations. 

"Q Weren't you subsequently appointed Chief 

of the Operations Section? 

"A. I was Chief of the Operations Section of 

G-3 (Operations and Planning) and under that I v;as 

C'ief of Operations. 

"Q. G e n e r a l , i n any operation by the Army, 

rather detailed plans have to be made before hand, 

do they not? 

"A. Ordinarily operational plans are drawn up 

every year, however in case cf an emergency, plans 

are drawn up immediately. 

"Q. General, what plans were drawn yearly? 

"A. At that time, the annual plans involved 

Northern Russia and China. 

"Q. What part of China, General? 

i — — _ — ： 
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."A. North and Central China operations. 

. What were the plans against Russia? 

"A. The plans involved defense in case of 

Russian attack. 

"Q. At vihat location would your defense be? 

"A. Along the Manchurian borders. 

"Q. Northern Manchuria? 

"A. Yes. 
M

Q . Manchuria was a pretty good buffer against 

Russia for Japan? 

"A. It was intended as a buffer area. 

"Q. Those plans were drawn yearly, is that 

corrcct, General? 

"A. These plans were reviewed annually, as done 

by any staff. 

"Q. You were on the staff in 1931 and 1932, 

General? 

. " A . Yes." 

We introduce in evidence IPS Document No. 

1 4 0 8 — 

THE PRESIDENT: Mr. Carr is here now. 

MR。 LOPEZ: Mr. Comyns Carr. 

THE PRESIDENTS Mr. Carr, the other day 

you moved the Tribunal to strike out of Count 25 

the name TOGO and to insert in lieu thereof the name 
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T0J0. The application is granted so far as it 

extends to the striking out of the name TOGO, but 

refused so far as it includes the striking out --

the insertion of the name TOJO. 

Mr. Lopez. 

MR. LOPEZ: Shall I proceed, Mr. President? 

THE PRESIDENT: Yes. 

m . LOIEZ: We introduce in evidence IPS 

document Fo. 4108 which is an extract from the 15 

April 1946 interrogation of the defendant MUTO, 

to show his admission regarding the relation between 

the Military Affairs Bureau and the Army General 

Staff, his function as liaison between the War Ministry 

and Navy Ministry and his interventici in the drafting 

of the Imperial Rescript declaring war on the United 

States. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 4108 will receive exhibit No. 2240. 

(Whereupon, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 2240 and received in evidence.) 

皿 . L O P E Z : We read that document in its 

entirety: 

(Reading): "Page 11. 
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"Q. Is it not true that HOSHINO and OKA, as well 

as yourself, supported the decision of the Liaison 

Conference to wage war against the United States? 

"A. You c an call it that, although it wasn't 

our position to decide one way or the other. 

"Q. You did nothing on your part to avert the 

decision to wage war, did you? 

"A.エ did not oppose it. 

"Page 17 

"Q. Isn't it true that the Military Affairs 

Bureau is consulted by the Army General Staff for 

its advice and also consultation in regard to the 

necessary preparations to wage war? 

"A. It may be put that way, "but what actually 

happens is that the General Staff says such and such 

will be necessary and we advise them whether it can 

be procured or not, 

"Q. Who was the higher categorical authority 

in the scheme of things in Japan, the Chief of the 

General Staff or the War Minister himself? 

"A. The Chief of the General Staff. 

"Q Is it not true that the General Staff always 

acquainted the War Ministry with anjr operations in 

order that the War Ministry could formulate a sound 

policy? 
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"Page 18 

"A. Yes. 

"Q. And is it not also true that in order to 

accomplish effectively a given mission, that the 

Navy Ministry and the War Ministry establish a 

Liaison in order to coordinate their efforts? 

"A. Yes. 

"Q. Was not OKA of the Navy Affairs Bureau and 

you of the Military Affairs Bureau the Liaison between 

the army and the navy? 

"A. Yes. 

"Questions by Mr. Lopez: 

"Q.And precisely OKA and you were present all 

the time in the Liaison Conference in order to avoid 

any misunderstanding of action and to coordinate the 

efforts of both the army and the navy, together with 

the Minister of Finance, the Foreign Minister, the 

Minister of State, and the Prime Minister himself? 

"A. Yes. 

"Q. And during your incumbency as Chief of 

the Military Affairs Bureau, you were closely 

associated, with OKA by the very nature of both of 

your offices一一liaison between the Army and the Navy? 

"A. Yes. 

"Page 20. 
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"Q. You had a hand in preparing the declaration 

of war? • 

"A. Yes. 

"Q. As a matter of fact, you collaborated in 

the preparation of that declaration of war with 

M r . TOGO and OKA? 

"A. The C a b i n e t — t h a t is to say, Minister TOGO 

wrote one up and so did OKA, and I also prepared a 

draft. The three of them were put together and the 

final one was decided upon. 

"Q. How many hours leeway did you give the 

United States to answer the ultimatum before attacking? 

"A. The time was decided upon by the Navy-

General Staff. I do not recall what time limit 

we gave the United States after the ultimatum? 

"Q. You mean to say that the Cabinet gave the 

General Staff that power? 

"A. The Navy General Staff figured out when 

their operations would take place and then notified 

the Liaison Conference of the Minus H hour at which 

the United States could be notified. 

"Q. But the fact of the matter was that you, 

M r . TOGO and M r . OKA collaborated in the drafting 

of the final note? 

"A. Yes, and the final dispatching of the 
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coranunication was left to the Foreign Office. 

"Q. Let us get this straight for the sake of 

posterity. You prepared your own draft; Mr. TOGO 

also prepared his own draft5 and Mr. OKA. also prepared 

h n After each one of you prepared an individual 

draft, the three of you huddled together and drafted 

the final draft, is that it? 

"A. I am sorry. What I thought you meant by 

declaration of war was the speech which the Emperor 

gave. This was prepared by me and the others. 

The actual ultimatum was drafted by the Foreign 

Office. 

"Q. You mean to say that the Imperial Rescript 

was prepared by you and others? 

"A. Yes„ That was the thing that we drew up 

and brought before the Liaison Conference where changes 

were made and the final draft was settled upon. 

"Page 21 

"Q. When the document -which 3,ou termed to be an 

ultimatum to the United States, which you claim to 

have been prepared only by the Foreign Minister, was 

that document ever shown to the War Ministry or to 

you for consultation as to whether it was agreeable 

to your office? 

"A. Yes. 
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"Q. Of course, it was agreeable to you "before 

it was sent, otherwise it would not have been sent? 

"A. Yes. 

"Q. You practically OK'd it? 

"A. Yes. 

"Q. Did you offer any suggestion, correction 

on the draft as submitted to you by the Foreign 

Ministry? 

"A. I have no recollection. 

"Q. But you recall that you approved it? 

"A. Yes." 

We offer in evidence IPS document No. 4109, 

which is an extract from the 16 April 1946 interro-

gation of the defendant MUTO, to show his admission 

that he agreed with all the policies of the defendant 

TOJO when he was Premier of Japan, and his role in 

helping draft the Imperial Rescript which declared 

war against the United States. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 4109 will receive exhibit No. 2241. 

(Whereupon, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 2241 and received in evidence.) 

MR。 LOPEZ; We rend this document in its 
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entirety: 

(Reading) "Page 1. 

"Q. General, you agreed with TOJO on all his 

Dolicies since the time that TOJO became Premier 

ir October 194-1 and up to the time you resigned as 

Director of the Military Affairs Bureau, did you 

not? 

"A. The Cabinet was unanimous. I only recollect 

matters up to April 194-2. After this date I knov; 

nothing because I was sent to the F r o n t . 

l ,

Q. Then your answer is that you did agree 

completely with TOJO? 

"Page 2 . 

"A. Y e s . 

"Q. And that is particularly with reference to 

the relations with the United States and Great Britain? 

"A. Yes. 

"Page 4 . 

"Q. Going back to the Imperial Rescript which 

you said you had a hand in its preparation, can you 

tell us who were the others who helped prepare the 

Imperial Rescript declaring war against the United 

States? 

"A. OKA, HOSHINO and myself prepared the draft 

of the Imperial Rescript to be handed to the Liaison 
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Conference for approval. This was altered considerably 

by the Liaison Conference. 

"Q. OKA, HOSHINO and yourself were the Committee 

created to make the draft? 

"A. Yes. 

"Q. Admiral OKA represented the Navy, Mr. 

HOSHINO represented the Liaison Conference, and 

yourself represented the War Ministry? 

"A.エ remember that there was a representative 

from the Foreign Office who also participated. I 

think his name was YAI/IAJ.10T0. 

"Q. But you represented the Army, Mr. OKA 

represented the Navy, and Mr. HOSHINO as Chief 

Secretary of the Liaison Conference represented the 

liaison Conference. 

"Page 5. 

"A. Yes. 

"Q. The Committee of which you were a member 

prepared a draft and submitted the draft to the 

Liaison Conference. 

"A. Yes, this was submitted to the Liaison 

Conference. 
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LIB. LOPEZ; We tender in evidence IPS 

Document No. 2273, which is an extract from the 

April 2 2 , 1 9 4 6 , interrogation of the defendant MUTO, 

to show his admission that he was the deputy chief 

of staff of General MITSUI during the Rape of Nank-

ing and General YALiASHITA
1

 S chief of staff during 

the Rape of Manila, that he and other Japanese 

officers had heard of a book printed in America 

denouncing the Japanese armed forces for the Rape 

of Nanking, that it was in 1915 in Siberia that 

Japanese troops showed for the first time "tenden-

cies toward atrocity" involving "confiscation, or 

rather, stealing, rape, robbery, and such. 

THE PRESIDENT: You do not need such a 

lengthy explanation of such a short document. You 

have practically said everything that is in the docu-

ment. 

MH« LOPEZ: Mr. President, the document 

that I will read is quite lengthy, and if I ever 

did it, it was to guide the Court. 

THE PRESIDENT: Yes. Head it. 

MK„ LOPEZ: We read the document in its 

entirety. 

.THE PHLSIDEiri'. Admitted on the usual terms. 
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CLEHK OF THE COURT: Prosecution
1

s docu-

ment 2273 will receive exhibit N o . 2242. 

(Whereupon, the document above refer-

red to was marked prosecution
1

s exhibit No. 

2242 and received in evidence.) 

MR。 LOPEZ: We will read the document in 

its entirety。 

"Page 7： 

"Q Your forces in Nanking were not being pressed 

by the Chinese forces in any way -- so much so that 

you were able to celebrate the taking over, is it 

not? 

"A Japanese troops waited outside the city 

wall, and leaflets v/erc dropped ordering the Chinese 

to surrender. Such orders were not obeyed； there-

fare, the Japanese troops entered the city by force. 

"Q How long did it take them to do it? 

"A Two days. after the actual bombardment 

commenced. 

"Q Do you attribute it to coincidence the 

fact that you were also the Deputy Chief of Staff 

of General YAMASHITA when the rspe of Manila hap-

pened? 

"A In the case of Nanking, two or three bat-

telions were to enter the city. However, the whole 
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army entered within the walls, thereby resulting 

in the rape of Nanking/ In the case ©f Manila, 

ieneral Y A M S H I T A desired to avoid fighting within 

the city. However, certain elements of the navy 

and the army outside of General YAMASHITA
1

s command 

remained in the city, thereby frrcing American 

forces to attack the City of M&nila. 

"Q Is fighting in the City of Manilr any 

justification for raping of the women of Mr-nil a by 

your soldiers、 

"A Such is not justifiable. 

"Q Is fighting in the City of Manila 

justification for your soldiers of killing 

of civilians by burning them with gasoline 

shooting them with machine guns, including 

small children? 

"A Such is definitely not justifiable. 

"Q Can you explain the behavior of those troops 

in the light of education given by the c.rmy or by 

the Government of Japan? 

"A エ regret that you ask such a question. 

There is no army in the world or government in the 

world that will instruct their people to shoot or 

kill children or civilirn population. 

sny 

thousands 

or by 

women and 
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"Q Has it not troubled your conscience to find 

that so many innocent women and children were either 

killed or raped, either in China or the Philippines? 

"A After the atrocities in Nanking snd Manila, 

and being a member of the General Staff at both 

incidents, I felt that something was lacking in the 

Japanese military education. 

"Q What do you think is lacking in military 

education? • 

"A The troops that committed the atrocities 

in Nanking and Manila, v/c-re men mobilized in p. hurry, 

and they were not trained properly in military 

education. 

"Q When did you come across that book written 

by. an American on the rafje of Nenking； 

"A I heve h。t seen the book, but I merely 

heard that such a book was printed in America. 

"Q You were told about it in 1937 - 1 9 3 8 ? 

"A ェ believe it was in 1938. 

"Q Were you not ashamed as a professional 

soldier that such a state of things should find it-

self in a book indicting against your sriny? 

"A エ felt that it was a shame to the Japanese 

troops • 

"Q Did not the high ranking Japanese officers 
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discuss the matter and find out in what w?y you could 

improve the situation so that similar incidents 

would not be repeated in the future? 

"A There were no formal gatherings just to 

discuss such matters, but among the officers there 

were individual discussions. 

"Q Did you not feel at the time in 1938 that 

’there must be something wrong with the information 

9

1

 section of your army? Why was it that in the case 

of Nanking you only knev; about ten or twenty inci-

dents v/hen the book mentioned written by the Ameri-

can,
 1

 The Rape of N a n k i n g
9

, the whole civilian popu-

lation? 

"A As I have stated before, I have only heard 

of between ten to twenty incidents。 How mrny inci-

dents were reported within the two armies I do not 

know. 

"Page 10: 

"Q When you heard in 1938 about the book 

mentiojiing about the r?pe of Nanking, did you not 

discuss the matter informally with other officers 

in a higher echelon? 

"A There were no discussions. 

"Q You mentioned about informal discussions 

about rtrocities committed in Chinn. Of whet did 
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those discussions consist? 

"A There were no discussions concerning the 

rape of Nanking in regards to the published book. 

However, because the Japanese troops were misbehav-

ing, there were informal discussions. 

"Q What remedies were suggested in those dis-

cussions? 

"A During the China-Jrpnnese and the Russo-

Japanese War such atrocious acts were not known among 

the Jcippnese Army. It v;n.s about 1915 when Japanese 

troops were sent to Siberia such tendencies towsrd 

atrocity camo into the limelight, thereby proving 

that the quality and character «f the Japanese is 

slowly deteriorating. Therefore, education in 

homes and schools must changed to meet the situa-

tion. Such discussions were held informally. 

"Q M.any officers like you were worried about 

such atrocities because it reflected adversely on 

the honor and the prestige of the Japanese Imperial 

Forces, is it not? 

"A They were very much worried. 

"Q You were worried yourself so that when the 

book appeared you tried to investigate what you 

could do in order to remedy the situation -- the 

book on the rape of Nanking? 
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"A For a long time エ had been associated with 

the Inspector General Military Training Department, 

and エ wes very .much interested in the proper educa-

tion of the army. 

"Q IVhat reforms did you introduce in the train-

ing and education of the young 'mfcn who were about to 

go int, the c.rmy so that those wcrknesses which you 

noticed to heve cropped up after the Siberian ex-

pedition in 1915 could be .corrected? 

"A At the time when Japr.nese troops were sent 

to Siberia, I wr.s only c Second Lieutenant, so even 

if エ did notice that エ couldn't do anything about 

it. 

"Q But when you had influence with the office 

of the ^d jutc?.nt. General v;ho ws.s in oharge of mili-

tary training, v;b.at did you do in order to strengthen 

that weakness which you noticed way back in 1915? 

"A Even after I became Lieutenant General I 

could not, do anything as I was not a divisional 

commander. In order to put anything into force one 

has to be a divisionol commander. 

"Q How ebout when you beer-me Chief of the 

Military Affairs Bureau? 

The Chief of the Military Bureau is only 

a staff under the Minister of War, and he has no 
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power to give out orders on such. 

"Q If you were a divisional commander or if 

you had been in charge of the training or education 

in the schools, you would have given out orders to 

the schools that that weakness which you noticed 

since 1915 was strengthened and fortified? 

"A Yes. ( w i t n e s s l a u g h s ) 
11

Q. Vinha.t happened in Siberia which started the 

deterioration of the chrracter of the Japanese 

soldier? 

" A C o n f i section, or r a t h e r i t e a l i n g , rape, 

robbery, and. such." 

MR. LOPEZ: X'e offer in ぃ7ic^nc_.e IPS Doou-

ment No. 2?へ7 whち.、h is p. news story en —i
+

:Led "MUTO 

Flpys Eure^L'T-rats end Parties , " p u b l i s h e d in "The 

Je.pan Ti/nts '：： irail" for March 21,194-0, on pages 1 

=>nd 2, to shew che importance of the high office 

occupied by defendant 1VIUT0 as Director of the 

Military Affairs Bureau, and to --

THE PRESIDENTi Admitted on the usual 

terns. 

MB。LOPEZ (continuing) : further show M s 

totalitarian views which included favoring dissolu-

tion ef political parties and suggesting that national-
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ism is a better name for totalitarianism of European 

2 conception es guiding principle of the Japanese 

3 n a t i o n . 

4

 CLEKK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's docu-
5

 ment No. 2947 will receive exhibit No. 2243. 
6

 (IVhereupcrx, the document above refer-

red to was marked prosecution's exhibit No. 

2243 and received in evidence.) 

THE PRESIDENT: iVhat is the delay due 

10 
Is there something wrong with the エBM? 

u 
亂 LOPEZ: V.e will read the first six 

12 
paragraphs from page 1 of this document: 

13 
"MJIO FLAYS BUREAUCRATS i.ND PARTIES. 

14 
"/vers Army y-'^nts Political Organizations 

15 
to Reconsider attitudes. 

16 

"Tokyo, Wednesday, March 20，1940. 

"Major-General ilkira MUTO, Director of the 

Military Affairs Bureau of the fcar Office, Tuesday 

afternoon expressed straightforthwardly the opinion 

of the Army favoring dissolution of political 

parties if they seek to further their interests 

alone under the current emergency. 

"General kUTO
1

S declaration came in answer 

to interpellations put to YJar Minister General 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Shunroku HATA at a joint meeting of sub—committees 
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of the House of Representatives in charge of dis-

cussing settlement of accounts of State budget. 

"Bunhei HAi^ぶHI, Seiyuksi K U H A R A , Faction 

M.F., put interpellations to War Minister HATA on 

the following points: 

" 1 . M i s t does the Army think of the present 

social system? 

"a。 Don't you think that the れrmy commits 

itself to the field of politics and economy too much? 

"3. Don't you think that the A r m y , bureau-

crats and political parties ought to proceed hand in 

hand to accomplish the objective of the
 1

 sacred w a r
1

?
1 

MR. LOPEZi Also from page 2 of this docu-

ment we read paragraphs 4 , 5， and 6, as follows: 

"Referring to totalitarianism of European 

conception, General MUTO said that 'nationalism' 

is considered a better name for what is believed to 

be the guiding principle of the Japanese nation. 

"In this connection, General MUTO quoted 

the speech delivered by General Juichi TERAUCHI 

before the D i e t when he was War Minister that ours 

should be totalitarianism completely nationalist 

in principle and faith. 

""If the whole nation carried everything 

before the State,' General MUTO further said, 'the 
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full power of the State will 

MR. LOPEZ: If your 

as our next witness Shinichi 

be displayed.
; 

Honor please, we offer 

TANAKA. 
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TANAKA S. DIRECT 

S H I N エ C H I T A N A K A , c Witness crllod by 

the prosecution, being first duly sworn, testi-

fied through jeprnese interpreters g s follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY m . LiPEZ: 

| 
Q V

T

ill you kindly give us your full name, 

"： 

age, and address, and occupation if c.ny? 

A TANAKA, Shinichi, Pge 54, No, 2040 Tsuizawr：-

mura, Miyc County, Miyc Prcfccture. Address 2042. 

Q I show you IPS document Ko。 2925 entitled 

Affidavit. Will you kindly tell us if you hr.vc rord 

its contents? 

A I hr.vt rcsd it „ 

Q Are the facts rccitcd in thot affidavit true 

end corrcct? 

A Yc.s。 

Q Did you mcke thr.t affidavit voluntarily \\i th-

out any compulsion, intimidr.tion，or m y pressure troughゼ 

to bear on you? 

A Yes , you r.re corrcct. 

MR. LOPLZ: At this juncturo, Mr. President, 

we offer in evidence IPS document No. 2925 identified 

by the witness Sinichi TANAKA r.s his effidrvit. 

THF PRESIDENT; Admitted on the usur.l terms. 
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25 CLFRK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 
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2925 will reccivo exhibit No. 2244. 

(WhorcuDon, the document obove re-

ferred to was marked prosecution
1

s exhibit 

No. 2244 end received in evidence. 

腿 . L O P E Z : Wc will r、cd the r.ffidr.vit in 

its entirety: 

" I , S h i n i c h i T A N A K A , m r . k c o c t h n n d s f y e.s 

follows: 

”Q Fcrc you once Chief of the First Section 

(Opers tions) of the Gcnerr 1 Strff of the. Jrprnc se 

Impcrir.l Array? 

" A Yes,エ w r s s u c h f r o m Octobcr 1 2 , 1 9 4 0 t o 

Dtcembcr, 1942. 

"Q T-Tirt your rr.nk when you r.ssumcd office 

for the first time? 

"A I was M a j o r Gencrr.l but wes promoted to 

Licutcnrnt Gcncrrl in O c t o b c r , 1 9 4 1 . 

"Q Do you know the defendrnt Akirr. MUTO? 

"A Yes. When I wcs Chief of the First Section 

(Operations) under Gcnercl SUGIYAJ1A, Gcncrcl MUTO 

w e s C h i e f o f t h e M i l i t r r y A f f r i r s B u r e a u . H e v / a s o n e 

of the liaison men who did most of the work between 

t h e i " r r M i n i s t r y v n d t h e A r m y C - c n c r r . 1 S t r f f . 

"Q As lir.ison man what wrs the nrturc of his 

work? 
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TaNAKA S. DIRECT 

" a At the Goner?1 Str.ff office the work wrs 

mostly pc:por work conccrning mobilizr.tion, orgenizr.-

tion, operations, strategy and trctics. The Army 

Gcnerrl Str.ff hrs nothing to do with mctt:..rs involv-

ing politics, foreign relations end finrnce. 

"Q In the decision to undertake op.:rations on 

Indo-Chinr. in. 1941, whc.t hrd the Wrr Ministry to do 

with thrt decision? 

"A In mcttcrs like- thrt, military policies go 

to the General Steff from the Wrr Ministry, but it docs 

not menn thrt the
 r

c r Ministry mr.kcs the decision. 

First of all the Prime Minister, the For^vign Minister, 

the Minister of
 i r

ar, the Minister of Np.vy rnd the Chief 

of the Army Gcncrrl Strff rnd the Chief of the Ncvy 

General Staff, hold c preliminary meeting rnd crrivc 

ot e decision of nr.tionrl policies. The decision of 

the Cf.binet is hended down to the Wrr Ministry which 

in turn contacts the Gencrcl Strff on mrttc.rs which 

concern the General Strff such r.s military operations. 

"Q VTio is sent down to the Army General Str.ff 

from the War Ministry in order to convoy the- policy 

lcid down or the decision made? 

” A In such imp or tent mr.ttcrs r.s the nr.tionr.l 

policy regarding Indo-Chinr, the '
r

rr Minister vrould 

go directly to the Chief of Strff, but in minor 
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details the r Minister rpprorchrs the Chi.一f of the 

Military Affpirs Burcr.u rnd h':.: in turn will mckc 

connections with the. General Str.ff. 

"Q Fho would follow up the order or the decision 

r.rrivcd rt rt the confrrencc which is hr.ndcd d o m to 

the； WC'.v Minister rnd which is prssed on to the GGneral 

Staff? 

"i： The Chief of the Genorrl Strff will crrry out 

thrt pert of nation:* 1 policy f s fr+r rs op rations ^rc 

concerncd. The Chief of Gcncrrl Strff integrrtcs the 

nctionrl policy into operations rnd strategy. 

"C In whr.t wey docs he cerry out the order? 

"A The Chief of the Gcncrrl Str.ff hed been rl-

rerdy included in the preliminary mcrting so he knows 

in general the ovcr-c.ll policies c,nd operr.tions. For 

this reeson, it is easier for him to integrate, the 

policies into the operations. After ho comes brck to 

the Gencrr.l Strff office, he crlls in the Vicc Chief 

of Staff rnd the four mrin essistr.nts nnd he requests 

tho vrrious ossistrnts, rfter rc;vcaling his plsns rnd 

policies', to bring in vr.rioi.'S dctr.ils to conform to his 

plans. After such mrtcrir.ls じ:rc.へ’the red. the Chief of 

•Senci.nrr.l Stc.ff gives out the order for the actual 

crrrying out of the operotion. 

"Q Your scction is in chp.rgc of opcrrtions r.nd 
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strrtegjT-? 

"A Yes. 

"Q As the Chief of the Gcncrnl Strff ettends 

the confcrcnce thet mr.kes the decision why is the need 

for the Wr.r Minister to go over to the Chief of Stcff 

and h m d him the orders? 

"A The decisions arrived at the preliminary 

meetings must be rpproved by the Ccbinct in order to 

mekc them legpl rnd binding. Since the Chief of 

Goncrc.1 Strff docs not know the dcoision of the Cr:binc.t 

the ？/ar Minister contacts the Chief of General Stcff. 

"Q Once you hr.vr； prc-pr.red the plans for opcrr-

tion, to whom do you submit them? 

"A Aftc.r the opcrctionnl plans r.rc comple ted, 

they arc presented to the Vico Chief of St£ff. He 

rarkes the nccessc.ry corrections and in turn delivers 

them to the Chief of the Generr.l Staff. 

"Q Once it is received by him, whrt does the 

Chief of the Gcnercl Strff do r.bout it? 

"A He makes the necessary corrections rnd 

important rnrttcrs z.vc discussed with the Wcr Minister. 

It is shown to the Wp.r Ministry rnd if approved the 

Chief of the Gcnerr 1 Str.ff will give out the orders 

rnd if they r.rc importcnt orders, they arc first shovm 

to the War Minister, who will sign it if he cpproves, 
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! "Q Following the Imperial Conference of 2 July 

2
 194-1, do you reccll if you were dircctcd by Gcncrrl 

3 SUGIYAFA to rar.ke opcrntionr.l study on v. crmpcign 

4 against Melryn, Je.vr, Borneo, Eismsrck, Dutch Esst 

5 Indies end Philippines? 

6
 "A Yes.. 

7 "Q Following the Imperial Confcrcncc of 6 

g September 1941 do you remember if you were dircctcd 

9 by General SUGIYAM/i to begin prcpr：rations for opcrt'-

!0 tions cgninst those countries? 

11 "A Yc-s,エ wes ordered to do so following the 

12 Imperial Confcrcncc which w?.s r.ttended by KONOYE
1

,TOJO
 5 

13 OIEAWA, SUGIYAMA, TOYODA rnd M G A N O . 

14 "Q C m you tell us if Gcnerrls TOJO, Kir.IURA and 

15 MUTO had knowledge of these instructions by General 

16 SUGIYAMA to you in September 1941? 

17 ”A Yes, for by the very nature of the rules rnd 

18 practiccs gov, rning the rclrtionship bct?/cen the Wr.r 

19 Ministry, and tho General Staff at tho time, Generrls 

20 TOJO, KIimRA and MUTO had to know rnd did know of 

21 those instructions. As エ str.tcd be fore, the pc.pcr work 

22 for the prcparr.tion of the opcrrtion is done "by tho 

23 General Staff, however, the cqtur 1 prcpr.rrtion such 

24 ps supply end strength, etc., we.s ctrricd. on by the 

25
 1

 War Ministry. Sincc Goncrr1 MUTO wrs Chief of the 
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TANAKA S. DIRECT 

M i l i t a r y A r r p i r s B u r c c . u o f t h e \Uvr M i n i s t r y c x t i l r n - : ~ 

at ions for the prcpc.rction of the oncrrtion hrd to 

b e m r d c to h i m b y the G c n c r r l S t r f f . H e tots w e l l 

informed, eBpccir.lly on supply rnd money mrttcrs. 

"Q
 ir

f:s it the duty of the Gcncrrl Stcff to elert 

the field comm?.ndcrs rbout the immincncc of hostil-

ities? 

"A If necessrry, the field c o m m m d e r s were, 

alerted by the Gcncrrl Strff. It wrsn't the duty of 

my Scction, it wrs more the duty of the Intclligcncc 

Scction. 

"Q Following the Impcricl Conf• rencc on 1 Dcccmbcr 

1941 were you dircctrd on the next dry by Gcncrsl 

STJGIYi\JlA to drcft f.n clcrt ord. r to r.ll commcnding 

generals of troops in tho South Se?s Areas thrt wrr 

with the United States, England pnd Holland wrs 

imminent end warning them that hostilities should 

c o m m c n c G o n X - D r , y ? 

"A I wrs directed by Gcncrcl SUGIYAHA to write 

t h e o r d e r t o t h e f i e l d c o m m r n d c r s i n t h e ： S o u t h S e e s 

so the t in cr.se war should brcrk out they would be 

rcrdy. Actually, SUGIYAMA issued the order be cruse 

his signcturc wrs nccessrry to m r k t the order v?lid 

rnd effective； but before the order could be wired 

to the vcrious commandcrs in thr South Pr cific it rlso 
25 
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hcd to have the signature of rpprovr.l of Gcnorcls 

TOJO, KlilURA and MUTO in their rcspc ctivc crpacitics 

o.s 7•！cr Minister, Vice Minister of 「sr rnd Chief of 

the Military Affr.irs Burcru. It wrs the customrry 

rule in our officc to obtc in the signr.turf s of the 

War Minister, the Vicc Wcr Minister rnd the Chief 

of the Militrry Affairs on those important orders 

before they corId be sent out. 

"Q '"hen were you so dircctc.d? 

"A エ cm not. sure , though I think it wrs 

December 2nd or 1st when I wr.s circctcd b.y Gcncrrl 

SUGIYA1»IA to write r.nd issue tho order in his nrme. 

"Q Wes the ?lert order sent by wire to the 

commrnding gonercIs of rll troops of the South Scrs 

areas? 

"A Yes, they v/erc sent that dry cftc.r it hed 

been signed by General S U G I Y碰 . 

"Q Did Gcncrrl SUC-IY/J4A tell you who,t dcy wr.s 

X-Day? 

"A Yes, about 2?th or 28th November 1941 he told 

me thrt X-DAY would be Dcccmbcr 8 , 1 9 4 1 . " 

Thct is all for thr witness. 

THE PRESIDENT: will rcccss for fifteen 

minutes. 

(^hereupon, ot 1045? ^ rccess wns 
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tvken until 1100, after which the proceedings 

were rc sumcd r s followss) 
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KARtHAL OF THE COURT: The International 

Military Tribunal for the Far East is now resumed. 

THE PRESIDENT: Mr. Lopez. 

I-R. LOPEZ: If the Tribunal please, at the 

suggestion of the Clerk of the Court and before the 

defense will proceed on its cross-examination of my 

witness, Shinichi TANAKA, I beg leave to offer to be 

marked for identification only the whole interrogation 

of the defendant MUTO, of April 19^6, from which exhibit 

2239 was extracted from. 

We also offer for identification only the 

whole interrogation of the defendant MUTO, of 15 April 

194-6, from which exhibit 2240 was extracted from. 

We likewise offer for identification only, 

the whole interrogation of defendant MUTO, of 16 April 

194-6, from which exhibit 2241 was extracted from. 

And further offer for identification only 

the whole interrogation of the defendant MUTO, of 

22 April 194-6, from which exhibit 2242 was extracted froml 

THE PREトIDENT: You told us at the time, Mr. 

Lopez, you were tendering the whole of the interrogation 

in each case, although your document did not indicate it. 

The document tendered for identification will 

have the same number in each case as the excerpt. The 

excerpt in each case will be renumbered as now, plus 
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the letter "A". 

CLERK OF THE COURT： The record then will 

show as corrected prosecution document No. 4108 will 

receive exhibit No. 224-0 for identification only and the 

excerpt therefrom, bearing the same document number, 

will receive exhibit No. 2240-A. 

Prosecution's document No* 4109 will receive 

exhibit N o . 2241 for identification only and the excerpt 

therefrom, bearing the same document number, will receive 

exhibit No
0
 2241-A. 

Document No. 2273 will receive exhibit No. 

224-2 for identification only and the excorpt therefrom, 

bearing the same document number will be exhibit No. 

2 242-A. 

Document No. 2947 will receive exhibit No. 

2243 for identification only and the excerpt therefrom, 

the same document number, will receive exhibit No. 2243-A 

Document No. 2925 will receive exhibit No. 

2244. 

(Whereupon, the Idcuments above 

referred to were marked prosecution's ex-

hibit Nos. 2240 to 2243 for identification; 

the excerpts therefrom being marked pros-

ecution's exhibit Nos« 2240-A to 2243-A 

and.received in evidence. Document No. 



16,151 

TANAKA e . CROJSi-

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

292ヲ was marked prosecution
1

s ex-

hibit N o . 2244 and received in evidence.) 

M l . LOPEZ: If your Honor please, our 

witness is ready for any cross-examination. 

THE PRESIDENT: Counsel 0KAM0T0. 

CROSS^EXAUINATION 

BY m .ト . 0 K A M 0 T 0 : 

Q In your affidavit, page one, answer to the 

fifth question, you state that first of all the Prime 

Minister, the Foreign Minister, the Minister of W a r , 

the Minister of Navy and the Chief of the Army General 

Staff and the Chief of the Navy General btaff called 

a prpliminary meeting. This sounds to be a new name 

to m e . Does it mean the liaison conference? 

A It is a preliminary conference and is not a --

"prpliminarv" used as an adjective and this is not a 

proper noun and it is a liaison conference. 

THE INTERPRETER: I will repeat that. "This 

raprely denotes a preliminary conference with the word 

T

preliminary' used as an adjective and is not a proper 

noun and it is a liaison confprpnce," 

Q Is the liaison conference not a preliminary 

conference and is an independent conference? 

A Liaison conference as I see it in order to 

make it legal and to empower it must, first of all, 
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require the meeting of the Cabinet. 

Q But, in fact, are there any precedents or 

examples of decisions reached at the liaison conference 

being modified bv Cabinet conferences? 

A That, I do not know. 

Q Then I shall change the subject. 

Concerning the 12th question and answer of 

your affidavit, in page two of the English affidavit — 

fifth question and answer on cage two of the affidavit. 

By what you have stated here, do you mean that the power 

to decide operational plans rests in the hands of tho 

Chiof of the General Staff; is that what you mean? 

THE INTERPRETER: The witness' answer:"That 

is correct 
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Q B u t is it n o t a f a c t t.h?.t t h e p o w e r of 

decision which the Chief of General Staff is alleged 

to possess is the prerogative of command, a secret 

prerogative of command, which cannot be violated hy 

anyone and which must be respected and cannot be 

violated by anyone? That is the custom in Japan, is 

it not? 

THE MONITOR: Just a minute, correction: 

Will you strike out "secret" from the -- "secret" 

prerogative. 

M B . LOPEZ: Objection, your Honor, because 

the question is very vague and not clear. I wish it 

reworded and reformed. 

THE P R E S I D E ® : The test is whether the 
r ,

itness understands it. Do you understand the question, 

Witness? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, that question Y/as rather 

vague and abstract. If put to me nore concretely I 

may be able to answer more precisely. 

M R . S . OKAMOTO: Then I shall try to put the 

question in a concrete form. 

Q Could the War Minister interfere with decisions 

made b$r the Chief of General Staff; could he? What I 

am trying to ask you is whether the highest power of 

25 decision rested マith the Chief of General Staff? 
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A A nationfe operational plan is based upon 

that nation's national policy; h<vj?ever, the Y/ar 

Minister is in charge of national defense policy and 

the outline of that national defense also is under 

tjie charge of the War Ministry. The matter over 

which the Chief of the General Staff has charge is 

national defense and operations. An operational 

plan is completed only '.vhen a nation's national 

policy and its national defense policy -- and its 

national defense operations -- are coordinated and 

i n t e g r a t e d , so b o t h in t h e o r y as 可ell as in f a c t 

there cannot be any operational plan which is 

separated from national policy and national defense. 

Q I understand that point already, therefore 

I am asking you definitely about the employment of 

armed forces and operations for national defense. 

A If that is your premise,七hen if a nation 

is to set up or formulate an operations plan it must, 

also take into consideration diplomatic policy which 

is related to that matter, and also to formulate an 

operations plan it is necessary to build up its 

military manpower strength, the mobilization of its 

military personnel, as well as preparations in matters 

pertaining to materiel, equipment, and. so forth; 

thus materiel, personnel and budget necessary for 
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operations is in charge of the Y‘
T

ar Ministry, and if 

I should add still further, it should be under the 

charge of the cabinet or the government itself. 

Therefore, an operations plan is built up or formulated 

on the basis of the equipment and materiel, personnel 

and money available and w i t h i n the limits of the --

or w i t h i n the scope of such materials available. The 

Chief of the General Staff formulates the operations 

plans and decides upon it• 

Q W h a t you have stated generally coincides 

•with the knowledge that we generally have. M r . 

W i t n e s s , you are trying to answer all at once all 

o;.? the questions I am trying to put to you. Then I 

shall put the questions separately to y o u . 

Has the Chief of General Staff the right to 

decide,to make decisions concerning operational plans 

inasmuch as operational plan is drawn up in narts 

w i t h each part in charge of separate groups； however, 

the highest decision that is rendered is by the Chief 

of Staff, is that not so, as far as operational plans 

are concerned? 

M R . LOPEZミ Objection, your Honor, because 

it is a long-winded question and it involves so many 

extremes. I w i s h the question reported more simply, 

one by one. There are several subject matters there. 
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M R . S . OKAIiOTO: Although the answer v/as 

quite involved, complicated, my question was simple. 

I asked him only one thing. 

THE PRESIDENT: I think counsel suggested 

that the witness Fas anticipating him, giving him 

answers which might be the subject of further questions. 

I can see no fault of counsel at all in this matter. 

Proceed to ask your questions. 

Q Please answer one by one to my questions 

without any fear and if you find yourself to be in 

error, please correct it. Please an^vjer. 

What エ was trying to ask you. was whether 

it was the charge of the Chief of General Staff --

matters concerning employment of military force and 

operations were matters under the charge of the 

Chief of the General Staff? 

A Y e s , that is correct. 

Q In your answer to the 12th question in your 

affidavit you state that "he makes the necessary 

corrections concerning operational plans and important 

matters are discussed with the W a r Minister." 

THE MONITOR: Just a moment, instead of "he," 

the "Chief of Army General Staff." 

0 (Continuing) May エ take this to mean in 

this fashion: Concerning important matters, after 
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decisions have been reached by 一一 decision has been 

made by the Chief of General Staff, explanation is 

made to the ^ a r Minister and his understanding is 

sought? 

A No, that is not so. 
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Q
 Trr

liat I am asking is not about th6 materiel 

and personnel but the ope re. tions plons, thst is to 

say, the plans drarn up by the Chief of the Army 

General Staff. I presume that confirmation is a 

matter of consultation between the two parties. 

W o w , a r e 3^011 srtealcing a b o u t the p l a n s i t s e l f , t h a t 

is, operations plan itself? My interpretation is 

you are not. 

A I think I k m where the mixup lies. In 

an ot)eretions t)lan men and materiel ar.j all inclfded. 

They are important fundamental elements for the 

making of an operations ttlan -- hrvw much amranition 

shmild be made, or ‘ hat kind of fighting strength 

^hou'ld be built u p . These matters are all included 

in the onerations rilan, And, therefore I find that 

with rospect to the important items in the operations 

p l a n , s u c h as m e n a n d m a t e r i a 1 , t h e C h i e f .,f t h e 

General Staff discusses the matter with the "
T

ar 

Minister. 

Q Then I understand you better n。w.
 1tT

hat you 

statu in your affidavit about discussions, consulta-

tions ,and E^proval means consultation and approval 

pertaining to matters relating to men and. materiel.! 

So that means confirmation of those things, doesn't 

^
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A Actually those are the principal matters, 

and, as I have said before, it was a very intimate 

relationship with general -oolicy itself. 

Q I think I understand you generally. Then I 

shall turn to another noint; then エ will turn to my 

next question. It is about the thirtyenth question 

rnd answer in your affidavit nn page 2, English text, 

T' e r e y o f find the q u e s t i o n s 

"Following the Imperial Conference of 

2 July 1?41, do you recc.ll if you. were directed by 

General SUGIY/JIA to make operational study on a 

campaign, against Melaya, Java, Borneo, Bismark, 

Dutch East Indies and Philippines?" 

To that question ycu answered, "Yys 

A Yes, I remember bding directed. 

Q 可ere these plans made at nne time or were 

o r d e r s r e c e i v e d o n s e v e r E l o c c a s i o n s a n d n l a n s m a d e 

on several occasions? 

A I am not referring to a plan. I was 

ordered to mp.ke a study. 

Q That was my mistake. The word "study" 

ar>T»ars liere. ”'el'
1

,the order to conduct the study, 

were these orders given on several occasions? 

A Yes, I think tL.ey were given separately, 

on different occasions. 
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THE PRESIDENT : Over vihat period? 

MR。 S . 0KAM0T0: That w i l l be in my next 

question, your H o n ^ r . 

Q
 ,77

hen were they m a d e , the whole thingダダwHole 

study? 

A Y « s , the study was started about thet t i m e , 

"but 双as n.,t completed until about tha first part 

of December. 

Q Then w i t h respect to the next question, 

that is, the question and answer N o . 1 4 on page 2 

of the E n g l i s h affidavit. There you find the 

question: 

"Folio-wing the Imperial Conference of 

6 September 194-1 do you remember if you were directed 

by General SUGIYAMA to begin preparations for 

operations against those countries?" 

And you answered affirmatively to that 

question. 

Did you hoar in those d a y s , at that time, 

from General SUGIYAMA, Chief of Staff, that although 

efforts，"ereirainl夕‘concentrated on diplomatic nego-

tiations we were malcing preparations to cope with 

an enventuality? 

THE MONITOR: Possible exigency. 

A Y o s , I have heard that definitely. 
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Q Then your answer to the tsl'fect that you 

remember that at the Imperial Conference you ansswered 

"Yes,エ was ordered to do so following the Imperial 

Conference which v;as attended by KONOYE, TOJO, 

OIKAWA, SUGIYAMA, TOYODA e.nd NAGANO," did the Chief 

of General Staff explain that to you? ”'as the im-

port of this Imperial Conference explained to you 

by the Chiu f of General Staff? 

A エ was not able to get yonr question clearly. 

Do you mean what be explained, to roe about? 

Q ^hat エ am asking you is vhether the CYLIB f 

of General Staff also talked to you in line with the 

decision road at the Imperial Conference? 

A Yes, that is correct. 

THE MONITOB: Correction in a question that 

was asked two or three back; "That diplomatic 

negotiations, efforts, should be "orimarily devoted to 

diplomatic negotiations
 5
 and that military or 

operational plans should be made only in case of 

a possible contingency. 
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Q Then turning to question and answer No. 

17, second question and answer in page 3 of English 

affidavit. There you find words -- telegrams to 

commanding generals of troops in the fiold. Why 

was this communicated to the War Minister -- were 

they communicated to the War Minister and his 

subordinates? 

A What tolegrarn are you referring to, Mr. 

Counsel? I don't k n o w .エ don't quite understand. 

Q Then I shall read your answer: "I was 

directed by General S U G A Y A M to writes the order to 

the field commanders in the South £eas, so that in 

case war should break out they would be ready." 

A That is based upon regulation and custom 

and it is impossible to c o n c e i t that such an im-

portant matter like this is not reported or let 

known by the War Office。 

Q May I take it to mean that the War kinister 

was notified? 

A No. It is stated as written there. 

Q We: e there any regulations concerning that 

matter? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you mean to say that there is a regula-

tion which stipulates that approval should be ..: • 
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obtained from the War Minister and Lis subordinates'? 

A Yes. 

Q Does that mean that because thei-yr are the 

matters relating to diplomatic affairs, relations 

and military administration and not because they 

are matters relating to operations and employment 

of military force?
 N 

A Of course, because it applies, or it 

relates to military administration, but at the same 

time it relates to the national defense policy, in 

the very large sen^e. 

Q Although it may be n e e d l e j s to say the power 

of decision rests with the Chief of General Staff, 

doesn't it 5 that is
 5
 the power of command with 

respect to sending communication to commanding 

generals in the field? 

A Yes. Power to issue orders, is that it? 

Q Yes. 

A As a matter of fact, there is no case in 

which any order is issued on which the approval or 

agreement of the War Minister has been obtained. 

THE MONITOR: Has not been obtained. 

0 I am not asking about the agreement or 

the consent 5 I am asking about the right to issue 

orders, authority to issue orders。 
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A The authority to issue orders with respect 

to questions relating to operations resides in the 

Chief of Staff. 

Q Then passing over to the 20th question in 

your affidavit, page 3 of the English affidavit. 

There, answering the question, you say that you were 

told by General S U G A Y A M of his determination to 

start a w a r . At that time, M r . M t n e s s , did the 

Chief of the General Staff tell you that although a 

decision for war had been made, inasmuch as the 

Japanese negotiations were being continued that if 

a settlement, a successful settlement, were reached 

as a result of those negotiations, the operational 

force will be abandoned? Did he give you any such 

order? 

A Yes
 ?
 I received such a statement from the 

Chief of Staff. There is something further that is 

related to that if I may speak of it. 

Q Please speak of it. • 

A I think it was shortly after Chief of the 

General Staff SUGAYALiA issued that order that the 

Chief of the Personnel Bureau of the War Office came 

to see me. "The order has been issued," he said, 

"but if the diplomatic negotiations then under way 

should reach a successful culmination, then the 
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Japanese forces sent out to the South Seas areas 

will have to be brought back5 that is, they will 

have to be returned," and he asked m e , "Will it be 

possible to return these forces peacefully?" And 

the purpose of the mission, the purpose of the 

visit made to me by the Chief of the Personnel 

Bureau of the War Office, was that the War Minister 

had said that if the negotiations should reach a 

successful culmination the forces will be returned, 

"and so you go on to see the Chief of the First 

Division, of the first department of the General 

Staff Office and discuss the matter whether these 

soldiers can be brought home peacefully." Thereupon, 

I said that that is not a very simple question, 

however there would be nothing better than a suc-

cessful culmination of the Japanese-American negotia-

tions , a n d assured my visitor that the General Stcff 

Office will take full responsibility as to the re-

turning of the forces from the front line. 

'Q Who was the Chief of the Personnel Bureau 

at that time? 

A Lieut. General TOMINAGA, Kioji. 

THE PRESIDENT: A colleague has asked me 

to put the following question. Answer this, witness: 

If the War Ministry refused to provide materiel, men 
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or other things required by the Chief of the General 

Staff, what happens? 

THE WITEESS: If refused, the operational 

plans as conceived by the General Staff could not 

be formulated, but it would h&ve to as a matter of 

course formulate an operations plan within the limi-

tation of the men and msteriels provided them or 

provided the General Staff by the War Ministry. 

THE MONITOR: Instead of "provided," 

"guarantee," by the. War Ministry. 

THE PRESIDENT: We will recess until half 

past one. 

(Whereupon, at 1200， a recess was 

taken until 1330, after which the proceedings 

were resumed as follows): 
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A F T E R N O O N S E S S J D J 

I.taRSHAL OF T H E C O U R T : The International 

Military Tribunal for the Far East is now resumed. 

MR. HICGINS ： ！ . - r 。 P r e s i d e n t . 

THE PRESIDENT: Fr。 Higgins. 

JIR. HIGGINS: It is with deep regret 

that I a m o u n c e to the Tribunal the death of M r . 

Worth I'
T

cKinney, our staff associate from the United 

States. The end came suddenly as a result of a 

heart attack at eleven o ' clock tcd?i;
r

, while he was 

at his post of duty. 

THE PRESIDENT: We greatly regret to 

hear of the sudden death of an esteemed member of 

the American bar and. member of the prosecution. 

Our sympathy goes out to his sorrowing widow. 

S H I N I C H I T A N A K A , called e.s a witness 

on behalf of the prosecution, resumed the 

stsnd end testified through Japanese inter-

preters £S f d l O W S ： 

CROSS-EXAI'IMATION 

BY 1!R. S. OKAMOTO (Continued)： 

THE PRESIDENT: H r . OKAMOTO. 

Q Now, referring to the fifth Question and 

D
u
d
a
 &

 E
d
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answer in your affidavit, page 1 , i n the English 

text: 

"P In the decision to underteke operations 

on Indo-China in 1941, what had the War Fin is try-

to do Fith that decision?" 

エ don ft think you are referring to operations 

by your answer。 You simply mean dispatch or 

advance, dispatch of troops, advance into Indo-

china, by your answer, do you not? 

A By operetions I mean combit, the forward 

advence of troops end stationing o:
;

' troops, and 

therefore when I say sdvence I also include thct 

to be within the meaning of operations。 Th&t is 

our rififinition of "operations." 

THE M O N I T O R : Slight explanstion: The 

word "advance" as used by the witness, is "shinchu," 

s.nd means advance End occupy or sdvprce into and 

station. 

0 Changing the subject: The question comes 

from the question end answer nuirber 17 in your 

affidavit. In answering the question there you 

stated that for certain kinds of orders signature 

of the War Minister is necessary. 

A Where is that, Mr。 Counsel? 

0 That is where you fre spee.king s.bout 
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telegrsms. 

A What did you say? 

0 Then I shall read it. Then I resd it: 

"o Following the Imperial Conference on 1 

December 1941 were you directed on the next d.£y 

by General SUGIYAMA to draft an alert order to 

all commanding generals of troops in the South 

Sees are
c
?s tbrt war with the United States, 

England and Holland was imminent and warning them 

that hostilities should commence ")n 7-Day?" 

I believe thst only the ' ザ べ - 、 M i n i s t e r , 

‘the War Minister alone makes decit.'.ur.s -- the 

Minister alone makes decisions in the
 1tT

ar Ministry 

snd then it is not necessr.ry for the Vice-Minister 

of "
T

ar or for chiefs of bureaus of the Ministry to 

make the decisions„ However, if they sign those 

decisions it is not only for the purpose of 

accelerptirg the carrying out of those decisions? 

THE PRESIDENT: Your questions are objec-

tionable. They purport to contain st&tements of 

fact which may or may not be fact. The simple 

question you put ct the end of your statement did 

not warrant that lengthy introduction including 

the question itself. 

25 INTERPRETER: The witness' reply was: As 
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you say. 

腿 . S . 0KAM0T0: How shtll I do it? 

Sball I repeat the last question again? 

THE PRESIDENT: No. h£ve s.n answer to 

the question but エ do object to the time of the 

Court being wr.sted on questions of unnecessary 

length. 

m . S. 0 E M 0 T 0 : I understand. 

0 Then I shall ask you a question about MUTO. 

^hen you made requests to the ^Var Ministry on the 

orders -- Ministry for matters necessary for the 

General Staff on the order of the Chief of the 

General Staff — did MUTO, the Chief of the Military 

Affairs Euresu of the War Ministry, nefotie.te with 

you upon the orders of the ^ar Minister TOJO? 

A Yes, as you say. 

o In those da.ys t? id. not MUTO remain strictly 

within the bounds of bis duties e.nd never v/ent 

beyond them? 

A As far as I know, I think he carried out 

his duty within limits strictly -- within strict 

limits. 

P In other words, he obeyed strictly the 

instructions and intentions of the Minister himself? 

THE MONITOR: Obeyed and respected. 
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Q Are you aware of the fact that in those 

days MUTO's opinion was specially favored ana adopted 

by TOJO? 

A I don't know very much about that. 

Q Then, are you aware of this, that plans made 

by KUTO were rejected very often by the Minister? 

A That does not apply only to MUTO but to many 

others 前hose plans have been rejected by General TOJO. 

Q ェ am asking you particularly of the case of 

MUTO. 

A I don't have any example， concrete example, 

here but I -am quite sure that such situation existed. 

Q Then, have there not been any documents --

cases of any documents of either General Staff or of 

the War Ministry which had already been signed by 

MUTO and： after MUTO 's signature had been affixed, been 

rejected by TOJO? 

A Yes, there are cases such as that. 

THE PRESIDENT: The relevance of this is not 

clear. 

MR. LOPEZ: I object to this type of question 

because it is beyond the scope of the cross-examination 

THE PRSSIDEOT：: You must observe the red 

light, M r . Lopez. 

MR. S. O K A M O T O :ェ should like to ask your 
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opinion, M r . President. I failed to hear, M r . President, 

your last remark. 

THE P R E S I C E M : My remark was that your 

question was hardly relevant. The objection was that 

it was beyond the scope of the affidavit of the 

witness and his examination in chief. 

The objection is upheld. 

IB. S. 0KAM0T0: Then I will ask another 

question. 

Q Now, M r . Witness, in cases where agreement 

of views was not reached between you and MUTO, the 

Chief of the Military Affairs Bureau, is the matter 

then brought for consultation between the Vice-Chief 

of Staff and the Vice-Minister of '7ar? 

A Yes. 

Q Then, in cases where no solution is reached 

even between the Vice-Chief of General Staff ano the 

Vice-War Minister, is the matter brought up to Chief 

of Staff and War Minister himself? 

A Yes. 

Q toes that mean that the bureau chief had no 

power or authority to make decisions? 

A A bureau chief had no power of decision on 

any matter of importance. 

IB. S. OKA.MOT0: That is all. 
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M R . LOGAN： No further cross-examination, 

your Honor. 

THE PRESIDENT； Mr. Lopez. 

M R . LOPEZ: We have no redirect examination 

of the witness, your Honor. 

THE PRESIDENT: The witness is excused on 

the usual terms. 

(Whereupon, the witness was excused.) 

M R . LOPEZ: We offer in evidence IPS document 

No. 1793-A, which is a Japanese Military Secret Order 

No. 2190 issued 28 July 1942 by Vice-Minister of
 T

Var, 

Heitaro KIMURA, to show the defendant KIMURA's con-

nection and responsibility in so far as the execution 

of the Eoolittle fliers was concerned. 

MR. SHIOHARA: Counsel SHIOHARA. 

エ should like to call the attention of the 

Tribunal to this present document. 

On the 8th of January, Associate Prosecutor 

Woolworth. said that he would omit tendering as 

evidence document 1793-A because it was identical 

and the same as exhibit 1992 and, therefore, there 

is no need to tender that document here. 

With respect, Mr. President, to exhibit 1992, 

may I say that because there were very serious trans-

lation mistakes, the matter was referred to the Language 
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Arbitration Board and that the words "By order you are 

notified" was added, and in the place of "capital 

crime" the word "major c r i m i n a l " - - " c a p i t a l criminal," 

the words "major criminal" were inserted. However, 

since these mistakes have not been corrected or recti-

fied in the copies now tendered, I feel that it is 

very unfair to the accused and prejudicial to the 

accused. 

I wish to say one more, sir, and that is the 

Japanese words "Gunitsu Koiji" is rendered as "Military 

Eiscipline Council,
1 1

 ana since this is a very 

unclear rendition of that term, I wish that this matter 

would be considered for correction. 

MR. LOPEZ: If your Honor please, those facts 

have escaped us, and we have no doubt that counsel 

for the defense must have the facts right, and for 

that reason I refrain from further offering in evidence 

the document that we intended to offer. 

THE 'PRESIEEKT : Objection upheld. 

MR. LOPEZ: We offer in evidence IPS document 

No. l6-A, which is a memorandum of transmittal of the 

report of the investigation of the toolittle fliers, 

sent by Military Police Commander NAKAMURA, Akito, 

to Chief of Staff, General SUGIYAKA, dated 26 May 1942, 

copy of w h i c h was forwarded to the Minister of 可ar 
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Vice-Minister of W a r , Chief of the Military Affairs 

B u r e a u , and others. 

This evidence shows that the defendant K I M U R A , 

who was then Vice-Minister of
 T

.fer，was constantly posted 

with the fate of the Doolittle f l i e r s . 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLEIiC 0? THE COURT ； Prosecution's document 

No. l6-A w i l l receive exhibit N o . 2 2 4 5 . 

(Whereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 2245 and received in evidence.) 

M R . LOPEZ: W e will read the document in its 

entirety. 



16,177 

腿。LOPEZ: (Reading) "FOTEs Translation 

requested by Legal Section. 

"Military Police Report No. 352 

"Report on the Matter Concerning the Investi-

gation of the America打 Airmen Who Raided the Japanese 

Homeland. 

"FROM; Military Police Comirander NAKAMURA, 

Akito 

"TO: Chief of General Staff SUGIYAMA, Gen. 

"26 May 1942. 

"Attached is the report of the investigation 

of the eight officers and men of the American planes 

who took part in the raid on JAPAN proper on 18 April 

and were forced down at NANCHANG and NIWG PO in 

CENTRAL CHINA. 

"FORWARD TO: Minister of W a r , Vice-Minister 

of War, Chief of the Bureau of Naval Affairs, Chief 

of Military Affairs Bureau, Chief of Home Defence. (3). 

" C M e f of General Staff, Vice-Chief of 

General Staff, Chief of 1st (Administration) Section, 

Chief of 2nd (Intelligence) Section, Chief of General 

Affairs Bureau. (3) 

"Chief of Naval General Staff, Vice-Chief 

of Naval General Staff, Chief of 1st (Administration) 

Section, Chief of 2nd (Intelligence) Section, Chief of 
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5th Bureau. 

"Navy Minister, Vice-Minister of Navy, 

Chief of Bureau of Naval Affairs (3) and the 

Comirarxder-in-Chief of the Home Defense." 

THE PRESIDENT: Where is the report? 

MR。 LOP^Z: I beg your pardon. We have not 

tendered the report, your Honor. We merely want to 

show that they were kept posted about investigations. 

We tender in evidence IPS document No. 

2534-A, which is a news-story entitled, "Conference 

is Held by Army Members of Supreme Council",published 

in the Tokyo Nichi Wichi of Tuesday, July 1 , 1 9 4 1 , 

to show that the defendant KIMURA was part of the 

inner circle that plotted the course of Japanese 

.policies in the 'face cf the "fast-changing internation-

al situation." The Tokyo Nichi Nichi issue of July 1， 

194-1 was already admitted in evidence as exhibit 1132 

(page 10,204 of the record)
v

. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 2534—A will receive exhibit No. 2246. 

(Whereupon, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

N o . 2246 and received in evidence.) 

腿 . L O P E Z : We read the document in its 
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entirety: 

"CONFERENCE IS HELD BY ARMY MEMBERS OF 

SUPREME COUNCIL 

"TOJO EXPLAINS 

"Candid Views are Exchanged Regarding 

Fast-Moving Situation. 

"The Army called a conference of Army members 

of the Supreme War Council on June 30 at 1:30 p.m. 

at the War Minister's official residence. 

"War Minister Lieut. General TOJO and re-

lated officials explained in detail the present 

fast-changing international situation after which 

candid views were exchanged regarding the attitude 

to be taken by Nippon in the future. 

"The Army members of the Supreme War Council 

who attended the conference were T . I. H . Marshal 

Prince KAN-IN, General Prince ASAKA and General 

Prince HIGASHI-KUNI General Count Hisaiehi, T E R A U C H I , 

General Kenji DOIHARA and General Yasuji OKAMURA. 

"Representing the Army organs were War 

Minister TOJO; General Gen SUGIYAMA, Chief of the 

General Staff; General Otozo YAMADA, Inspector-General 

of the Army Education; War Vice-Minister KIMURA, 

Vice-Chief TSUKATA of the General Staff, and other 

officials concerned." 
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We tender in evidence Ii S しし5!juiiibiiし No. 

2908, which is a news-story entitled, "Awarding 

of Decorations to General SUGIYAMA and others from 

Fuehrer HITLER", p u M i s h e d in the Asahi Shimbun 

of 2 October 1942 which gives account of the cere-

monies attending the award of medals from Adolf 

HTTLER to the defendants KIJ,1UP.A, DOIHARA, and SATO 

in recognition of their contribution to German-

Japanese collaboration. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 2908 will receive exhibit No. 2247. 

(Whereupon, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 2247 and received in evidence.) 

MR, LOPEZ: We will read the document in 

its entirety: 

(Reading): "AWARDII G OF DECGRATIONS TO 

GENERAL S U G I Y A M AND OTHERS FROM FUEHRER HITLER. 

"CEREMONY HELD AT EMBASSY TODAY 

"Answering to the decorations which were 

conferred by His Majesty the Emperor upon military 

and civil officials of Axis nations residing in 

Japan on the anniversary of the conclusion of the. 

Tripartite Pact, the ceremony of awarding decorations 
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1

 conferred by Fuehrer Hitler upon Japanese officials 

2

 was held at the German Embassy, NAGATACHO KOJIMACHI 
3

 K U TOKYO at 12.30, 1st October. 

"SUGIYAMA, Chief of General Staff, DOHIHARA, 

Army Air Inspector General, KIMURA, Vice War Minister, 

SATO, Chief of Military Affairs Bureau, NINOMIYA, 

Secretary to the Prime Minister proceeded to the 

Embassy in dignified official military uniform. 
* 

Ambassador OTT, after handing the 'Grand Cross of 

the German Eagle' to General SUGIYAMA and DOHIHARA 

and Lieutenant General KIMURA, "Order For Merit with 

Star' to Major General SATO and 'First Class Order 

For Merit' to Colonel NINOKIYA, stated as follows: 
11

 'We acknowledge your merits in having by 

your efforts won glorious victories in the Joint 

execution of the War.' Representing the others 

General SUGIYAMA stated as follows： 'We pledge that 

we will march steadily towards the final victory 

with a firmer belief in the victory of the Axis in 

order to respond to the honour given by the FUEHRER 

today.' 

"The decorations conferred by the FUEHRER 

today are all newly issued war time decorations with 

swords attached to them. 

"After the ceremony was over, all the 
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attendance drank a toast. They had dinner with 

friendly conversation and atmosphere and the meeting 

was closed at 2 P.M." 

Brigadier General Quilliam, your Honor, 

will address the Court. 
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THE PRESIDENT: Brigadier Quilliam. 

BRIGADIER QUILLIAM: May it please the 

T r i b u n a l , I offer in evidence as implicating the 

defendant SHIMADA the report of a speech made by 

him at an Accounts Committee Meeting of the Diet 

on the 10th February 1942, being IPS document N o . 

2774-B. This is part of IPS document N o . 2774 which 

has been already produced for identification, and 

was given exhibit N o . 2236. In this speech SHIMADA 

emphasizes that Japan must be tho leading power 

throughout the- whole aren of Greater Erst Asia and 

that any element which does not conform to the will 

of the Japanese must be eliminated c o m p l e t e l y .エ 

propose, if the Tribunal please, to read the whole 

speech. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual 

terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

N o . 2774B will receive exhibit N o . 2248. 

(Whereupon, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 2248 and received in evidence.) 

BRIGADIER QUILLIAM: (Reading) 

"Minutes of the Accounts Committee Meeting 

of the Diet, 7th D a y , February 10,194-2, Speech by 
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Navy Minister SHIMADA. 

"I am overwhelmed with gratitude for the 

praises given just now concerning the various naval 

victories. The question asked, is not a matter which 

can be decided by the Navy alone. A part of the out-

line of the basic policy is primarily indicated in 

the Emperor
1

s Declaration of W a r . The Govcrnment
f

 s 

Declaration also extends to this point. Premier 

TOJO has already reported at this Diet Session 

(T. N . 79th Imperial Diet Session) matters which can 

safely be revealed at this time. As for the Navy, 

it also has the desire to successively show good 

results by following the Government's policies, not 

to mention the Emperor
1

s Eoclaration. I am in full 

agreement with the anxiety v/hich was expressed, that 

perhaps it might be meaningless to have foreigners 

who already have foundation?, grab the economic power 

despite our occupation, which was no easy task. 

エ"believe that this does not apply only to the southern 

regions. I believe that this should apply to the 

whole area which comprises the Greater East 

Asia Co-Prosperity Sphere. W e , the JAPANESE race, 

must be the leading power throughout the whole area 
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of Greater East Asia. However, sine.:;. JAPAK is the 

center of activities, whatever one may say, any 

element which does not conform to the will of the 

JAPANESE race must "be eliminated completely. How-

ever , t h o s e who work on a foundation of righteous-

ness will naturally be r e c o g n i z e d .エ am also of the 

conviction that we must never allow the sacrifices 

of lives to have boen made in vain. In the future
f 

concrete matters will be dccided by the Government 

and not by the Nrvy a l o n e .エ am also of the opinion 

that this line of thought should "be rdoptcd. For 

the present, we must win this war at all costs, as 

the Premier has stated frequently. The opponent 

is a g?eat enemy who possesses vast amounts of 

materials, and since two great powers are unitedly 

opposing JAPAN, it is no easy task to defeat them. 

Occasionally we hear people cry for materials and 

gasoline just because we hove attained a few mili-

tary victories, but we soldiers do not feel cny 

such freedom from care. Even a drop of gasoline 

must be used for military purposes, and the war must 

be won somehow or other. After first winning the 

w s r
}
エ would like to build the foundation while 

eliminating the point which you have just indicated. 
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(T. N , The last sentence was addressed to Committee 

Member K^SAI who gave a talk jr^t nrior to SHIMADA) 

in other words
f
 rs regards the great plan of devis-

ing various measures for the winning of the war and 

also the successive building of a foundation which 

will enable the JAPANESE rsce to expand, in the future, 

I believe, as the Premier stated previously in the 

Diet, that an announcement will be made in the near 

future since appropriate organs are nov/ ready. I 

want them to progress by striving to the utmost, 

taking into consideration the people's ideas and 

avoiding pitfalls. It is now only two months 

since this war started, but even if wo think far in 

the future, if we make too much haste, mistakes are 

more likely to crop up. Therefore,ェ hope that per-

fect plans will be devised in order to avoid miscei-

culations 

BRIGADIER QUILLIAM: May it please the 

Tribunal, that concludes the evidence to be present-

ed against the defendant SHIMADA. 

THE PRESIDENT: M r . Comyns Carr. 

M R . COMYNS CARR: May it please the Tribunal, 

エ now come to supplement the case against the accused 

K I D O . 

ェ first tender corrected translations to 
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agree with tiie Language Arbitration Board of four 

extracts from his diary, already exhibited. Exhibit 

1196 is dated 29 November 194-1, The pages of the 

record which will be required to be replaced are 

10,452 to 10,454. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

M R . COMYNS CARR: "Extract from entry from 

Marquis KIDO's diary, 29 November 1941." 

"From 2 o
1

c l o c k for about an hour in the 

study, the Emperor listened in person to the Senior 

Statesman's opinions. The following is a summary: 

"The Emperor remr.rked, The times have bo-

come very difficult, haven't they? To this Baron 

WAKATSUKI at once replied, in substance, as follows: 

"WAKATSUXI - I am not worried about the 

spiritual strength of our people but in the matter 

of materials the question of whether or not we can 

really stand a long-eange war deserves careful study. 

"OKADA - I think that today we are truly 

confronted with a critical s i t u a t i o n .エ am con-

cerned as to whether we can put full confidence in 

our ability to supply necessary materials. There 

was an explanPtion by the Government a short while 

ago, but ェ am still not convinced. 
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"HIRANUMA - His Excellency WAKATSUKエ has 

spoken of the -spiritual strength of our people and I 

agree with him on this point. But if today, when we 

have already been engaged in war for four years, 

thinps should further develop into a protracted 

war, it would become necessary to endure hardships 

and privations. I therefore consider that adequate 

meosures and efforts for bracing up public sentiment 

arc necessary. 

"KONOYE - I deeply regret that エ have not 

been able to do anything toward the adjustment of 

Japanese-American relations despite my efforts since 

last April. But I beg to express my appreciation to 

the present cabinet for zealously striving to attain 

this end. To my great regret エ am forced to conclude, 

on the basis of this morning's explanation by the 

Government that further continuation of diplomatic 

negotiations would be hopeless. Still, is it necessary 

to resort to war at once even though diplomatic nego-

tiations have been broken off? Would it not be 

possible, I wonder, while carrying on things as 

they are -- to later find a way out of the deadlock 

by perservering to the utmost under difficulties. 

エ think that I would like tu question the authorities 

concerned on this point later. 
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"YONAI -ェ do not have any data with me so 
2

% cannot express any definite opinion, but if Your 
3

Majesty will permit me to use the vernacular,エ 

pray that we may take care
 1

 not to lose everything 

l〕y trying to avoid becoming poor gradually.
 1 

"HIROTA - After having talked on conditions 

of each of the world powers since the World War, 

Japan has adopted every possible means to avoid the 

Intervention of Britain and America in the China 

Incident. In spite of this the diplcL”tic situa-

tion has become so serious as it is t.:
1

,-。、 Accord-

ing to the explanatioils of the Government we seem 

to stand now face to face with a diplomatic crisis. 

Ihough the diplomatic crisis has a close relation 

to the strategic moment, I think the true intentions 

of both sides in diplomatic negotiations are only 

revealed after passing through several crisis. Why-

should we hastily rush into war immediately after 

being confronted with the present crisis? Granting 

that war is inevitable,ェ believe we should always 

be on the watch to seize the opportunity for a solu-

tion by diplomatic negotiations even though blows 

have been exchanged. 

"HAYASHI 一 I have no reference data with me 

L. 
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1 but on the whole there is no alternc.tive but to reply 

2 orx the conclusions arrived at by the Cabinet after 

thorough cooperation and study with Imperial Head-

quarters. 

"ABE — According to the Government's ex-

planation it seems as the continuation of diplomatic 

negotiations will be difficult and that we are now 

placed in a really grave situation. I believe that 

w.? cennot expect anything further from the Cabinet 

as it appears to have studied matterf very minutely 

from every conceivable angle. Eat ii 、丄11 be nece-

ssary to carefully take into account the attitude of 

the Chinese people, for I believe it will be possible 

by one false step to lose all the gains hitherto 

achieved。 

"WAKATSUKI - We have today, I believe, 

arrived at a really important m o m e n t .エ should like 

to say one thing； If it is necessary for the preser-

vation and self defense of the Empire, we must 

rise to srms even though the country be reduced to 

ashes and though we can foresee defept. But it is 

dangerous indeed to execute state policy or to make 

use of the national strength to achieve such ideals 

as to the 'Establishment of the Greater East ； s i a 
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iCo-Prosperity Sphere' or of the 'Stabilizing Power 

2
0
f East Asia.' I pray that Your Majesty will give 

3careful consideration to this point." 
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. M R . COMYNS CARR: The ne:ct exhibit is 1239. 

The page of the record is 10,683. 

(Reading): "Extract from Entry from Marquis 

KIDO's Diary, 8 December 1941. 

"At 12:40 a.m. Foreign Minister TOGO tele-

phoned me saying that Ambassador GRLW had brought a 

personal telegram from President ROOSEVELT to the 

E m p e r o r , and asked my advice as regards the manner 

of handling same. I therefore advised him to 

deliberate carefully with the Premier as regards 

its diplomatic effect and procedaro； also stating 

that, as for an audience with HIS i^JESTY, His 

Majesty would graciously grant same even at midnight, 

so that there was no need of paying heed to this 

p o i n t . 

"At 1:30 a.m。 M A T S腿 I R A , the Mirdster of 

the Imperial Household called me up by telephone 

about the aforesaid matter, so I gave him my opinion. 

"Was notified that Foreign Minister TOGO 

had proceeded to the Imperial Palace. I also pro-

ceeded to the Palace at 2:40 a.m. I had a talk with 

the Foreign Minister at The Palace. Returned home 

at 3:3〇 a.m. 

"At 7:15 a.m. ¥i/as on duty at the office. 

Today was an unusually fine day. As I was proceeding 
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towards Miyake-zaka after having climbed the Akasaka 

Mitsuke slope,エ saw the sun rising brilliantly 

above the buildings in the distance. When one comes 

to think of it, this is the very day when our 

country is at last going to enter a gigantic war 

against the two great Powers of America and Britain. 

Already at daybreak this morning, an air unit of 

the Navy has carried out a mass air raid on Hawaii. 

Knowing of it, I was anxious atout its result, and 

unconsciously エ faced the sun an<l closed my eyes in 

prayer. 

"At 7：30 a.m. met the Prsm:er and both 

Chiefs of Staff and on hearing about the good news | 

of the grand success of the surprise attack on 

Hawaii, I deeply felt the blessings of Divine Grace. 

"From 11:40 to 12 a.m. was received in audience.丨 

Even at the moment of our entering upon a war where 

the national destiny was at stake, I most humbly 

beg to remark that I found His Majesty perfectly 

calm and absolutely unperturbed in His demeanor, for 

which I truly felt extremely t h a n k f u l . T h e Imperial 

Proclamation of War was issued," 

MR, LOGAN?) If the Tribunal please, may 

we have this referred to the Language Section to 

have them point out to the Tribunal just what the 
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Japanese interpretation is of the words "at last", 

because エ understand they are different from what 

we ordinarily understand them in English. 

THE PRESIDENT'. This document is approved 

by the Board and it is supposed to contain the 

equivalent English words. 

MR。 LOGAN: They are the equivalent English 

words, your Honor, but they have an entirely differ-

ent meaning, as I understand it, from what is 

ordinarily understood in the English language, that 

is, the Japanese meaning. 

THE PRESIDENT: They are supposed to give 

us the English words that convey the proper meaning. 

MR. LOGAN: W e l l , I spoke to the Translation 

Bureau about it, and they said that they would not 

put a translator's note on it unless they had a 

direction from the C o u r t .エ might say that those 

same words ^ere used in exhibit 1210, which is also 

another excerpt from Marquis KIDO's diary. 

THE PRESIDENT: We will refer the matter to 

them. 

m , COMYNS CARR: I would like to say that 

this matter has been referred to the Board, 

THE PRESIDENT: We will refer it to them again 

m . C01IYNS CARR: If your Honor pleases: 
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Exhibits 12フ8 and 1282 were read in the 

corrected form in the record. All I have to do is 

to hand in copies of the pages which have been 

reprocessed to be substituted for the pages in 

the copy exhibits themselves. 

Your Honor, I am asked to ask for this 

instruction. In the cases of 1196 and 1239 the 

whole document has been reprocessed and should be 

substituted for the original translation. In the 

cases of 1278 and 1282 it was only necessary to 

reprocess certain pages, and those should be sub-

stituted for the corresponding pages in the original 

translation. 

THE PRESIDENT: Well, you are not merely 

making recommendations on a document already tendered, 

but you are tendering fresh documents； and they are 

admitted on the usual terms, and will bear the same 

number. 

MR. COMYNS CARR: The next is prosecution's 

document 1532-E, which is the Japanese original of 

exhibit II89, an intercepted message in which certain 

errors were found (see Record page ]0402. As certain 

errors appear on examination, I offer the original in 

evidence。 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 
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CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

H o . 1532-E will receive exhibit No. 2249. 

(Whereupon, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution
1

s exhibit 

No。 2249 and received in evidence.) 

MR. COMYNS CAR.R: A telegram to Foreign 

Minister TOGO from 

dated November 27, 

NOMURA an(3. KURUSU, No. 1180, 

1941. 
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M R . C o r a s CARR: A telegram to Foreign 

Minister TOGO from NOMURA and KURUSU, N o . 1180, dated 

November 2 6 , 1 9 4 1 : 

"As /stated/ in our frequent cables, there 

is no hope to get acceptance for the whole of B plan, 

while we have not much time left. If the condition 

does not chsnge we must give up the negotiation 

though it is not desirable at all. We are deenly 

humiliated at our lack of influence. In this case 

the only way to bridge over this difficulty is to let 

President Roosevelt cable to His Majesty first of the 

hope of Japan and America's cooperation to maintain 

peace in the Pecific, (',ve will try our best to do so, 

if we can get your permission) and in return, to ask 

His Majesty to answer this messare, clearing the air. 

At the same time, if we can get a little time more, 

it is possible to take the initative In proposing 

the establishment of neutral countries includinp French 

Indo-China, Netherland East Indies and Siam, consider-

ing thet England and America may start protective 

occupancy (as you know, President Roosevelt suggested 

to make the Netherlands East Indies and Siam neutral 

countries in Seutember of this year)。 

"Though there is sn opinion thct the rupture 

ef this negotiation does not decidedly mean the 
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outbreak of war, after the "breakdown of the nepoti-

ations, it is possible for them to occupy Netherlands 

East Indies, as エ stated previously and the conflict 

will inevitably start by our attack. But it is very 

doubtful whether Germany will take action in accord-

ance with Article Three of the (Tri-Partite) treaty, 

and the solution of the China incident must be 

carried over at least to the end of this "'orId
 T

'ar. 

"As this telegram may become the last one of 

my suggestions, I wish you to she"/ this at least to 

the Lord Keeper of the Privy Seal hTDO and answer 

us by return telegram." 

The first additional document which I offer 

in evidence is prosecution No。 2—A dated November, 

1941, being a fuller and more considered account 

than appears in his diary, exhibits 114-7? 1150； 

1151, 1154, and 11ヲ6， of the fall of the Third 

KONOYE Cabinet and his reasons for recommending 

TOJO as the new premier。 

THE PRESIDENT; Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT； Prosecution's document 

N o . 2—A will receive exhibit No. 2250. 

(Whereupon, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

Ko. 2250 and received in evidence.) 
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THE PRESIDENT: Any substituted document 

will bear on its face a statement thst it is sub-

stituted by order of the Court of the 24th of 

January 1947. I am referring now to thos pages that 

were substituted. 

M R . COMYNS C 腿 ： I take it, your Honor, 

that the substituted exhibits'will retain the same 

number as the original for which they are substituted. 

THF PRESIDENT： I have already so directed, 

but, in addition, the substituted material should 

bear on its face a statement thet it is substituted 

by order of this Tribunal of today. 

M R . COMYHS CARR; Reading now exhibit 2250: 

"Circumstances under which the Third EONOE 

Cabinet Tendered Resignations. 

"On October 1 6 , 1 9 4 1 , Prime Minister KONOE 

collected the resignations of the Cabinet Members 

and presented them to the Emperor. 

"According to the announcement of the 

Information Board, the reason for the resignation en-

bloc of the Cabinet is the incongruous perspective 

of opinion in regard to the execution of the present 

national policy。 Consequently, the actual facts of 

the circumstances leading up to the resignation en-

bloc are not known at all by the public, and it is 
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not at all such a simple matter. 

"Of course, this is not unreasonsble, because 

as regards the decision of the Council in the Imperial 

presence of September 6 which wss the cause of the 

recent political change, not even the fact of the 

opening of the Council itself was announced; thus, it 

was hardly possible to know nor in any -"-'ay to let it 

be known. Let it slip out, then indeed, one is 

liable to infringe on the National Defense Preserva-

tion Law. However, unless somebody who knows the 

truth clarify this situation, there is the fear of 

erroneous judgment by historians at a later dete. So 

the pist of the circumstances has come to be recorded. 

" 1。 T h e Decision of the Council in the 

Imperial Presence on September 6 and the DeveloDments 

later. 

"The direct cause of the recent political 

shskeup had its origin in the decision of the Council 

in the Imperial presence of September 6 . Prior to 

this, however, the government had been pushing, with 

utmost secrecy, the negotiations in regard to the 

adjustment of diplomatic relations with America since 

about April。 There ere many matters worth recording 

about these negotistions, but they will be omitted 

inasmuch as they have no direct connection with the 
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present subject. At any rate, those negotiations had 

to be temporarily suspended because of the peaceful 

advance of the Imperial army into Southern Indo-

China and also the resignation en bloc of the Second 

KONOE Cabinet. But they were again taken un "by the 

Third KONOE Cabinet. As a result the Council in the 

Imperial Presence was opened on September 6, when the 

following policy was decided, end in line with it, 

the following important decision v;as made s 

"'To utilize every means cf diplomacy in 

resgrd to America and Britain to ft;1 Till the require-

ments of Japan, with the determination to open 

hostilities against America (Britain and the Nether-

lands) immediately in case our requirements seem un-

likely to be realized by some time during the first 

ten days of October.' 

"The Principle of the Execution of the 

National Policy of the Empire. 

’"In vic-w of the present imminent situation, 

especially the anti-Japanese attitudes taken by the 

various countries, such as America, Britain snd the 

Netherlands, the situation of Soviet Russia as well es 

the resiliency of the national strength of the Empire, 

etc., the Emprie will cerry out the policy prescribed 

in regard to the South within "the Principles of the 
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National Policy of the Empire in line with Recent 

Developments of the Situation" in accordsnce with the 

following: 

" 1 . T h e Empire will complete war preparations 

"by around the latter nart of October, with the deter-

mination not to shirk war against America (Britain 

and Netherland) /if it be/ for the sake of self-

preservation. 

"2. In line with the aforementioned, the 

Empire will endeavour to fulfill the requirements of 

the Empire by utilizing every dinlomstic means in 

regard to America and Bristin. 

"The minimum required items which the Empire 

must obtain in regard to the negotiations with America 

(Britain) and the limit of agreements which can be 

accepted by the Emnire in regard to these are on 

separate sheets (separate sheets omitted). 

"3。 We sre resolved to open hostilities 

against America (Britain and the Netherlands) immedi-

ately if, by the diplomatic negotiations of the pre-

ceding paragraphs, there is still no outlook for the 

realization of our requirements by about the early pert 

of October. 

"Policies towards areas other than the South 

shall be in accordsnce with the established national 
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policy, snd particrlarly
5
 an endeavour shall be made 

to avoid a combined battle front against the Empire 

by America snd Soviet Russia in the future.
1 

"After that, although the government worked 

assiduously for the establishment of negotiations 

with Amcrica, the opinions of the two countries did 

not coincide readily and finally the 10th day of 

October came and passed. Thereupon, the army repestedly 

demanded the execution of the decision of the Council 

in the Imperial presence, but Prince KONOE remained 

irresolute. However, as the political situation 

was such thet things could not be put off from day to 

day, Prince KONOE called the three ministers, the 

Foreign, Army and Navy, slong with President SUZUKI 

of the Planning Board, to his private residence at 

Ogikubo on October 12 snd held a meeting. From 

Chief Secretary TOMITA of the C a b i n e t ,エ l e a r n e d 

that opinions were divided at the meeting as to the 

interpretation of the decision reading 'in case there 

is no outlook for realization of our r e q u i r e m a n t s . . . ' 

The premier was of opinion that there wss still hope, 

whereas the War Minister had already decided that 

there wss no hope and strongly advocated a decision 

to open hostilities. The attitude of the Naval 

25 Minister w e s to Ewait the decision of the premier. 



16,204 

Finally, the following decision wes mr.de upon the 

suggestion of the
 r

a r Minister: 

"'In the Jspsnese-American negotiations, 

Jspan should； 

”
0

Try to obtain confidence regarding diplo-

matic success on the following two points "by about 

the time desired, by the Supreme Command！; 

"a. No changes to be made in the policies 

regarding the stationing of Japanese troops, and any 

policies centering around them. 

"b. Not to undermine the success attained 

in the China Affair. 

”
0

Proceed to reach diplomatic agreement 

according to the abovementioned conviction. 

"°Stop preparations for military operations, 

with the dccisicn of proceeding with the above inten-

tion. 
, l 0

The Foreign Minister should investigate 

the possibilities of success of the above points. 

"2. Developments after the Ogikubo Conference： 

"Although the decision was made as above 

mentioned, the political situation tightened up each 

moment and without time for sufficient study of the 

eforemcntioned decision and without arriving et any 

25 conclusion, the Cabinet rushc-d into the resignation 
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en bloc which took piece on the 16th. I hc.d severel 

occasions to confer informally in regard to the sav-

ing of the. situation with Premier KONOE,
 v

'bt Minister 

TOJO and. President SUZUKI of the Planning Bosrd, etc., 

from the 12th to the 16th, inclusive, but the details 

will be omitted. Mention may be made, however, as to 

the ettompted formation of the Imperial Prince 

HIGASHIKUNI Cebinet, which was proposed by War Minister 

TOJO at thst time and which was ronortedly agreed upon 

by Prince KONOE. I expressed my opposition from the 

following reasons, end hed it sent to Wsr Ministtr 

TOJO through the medium of President SUZUKI: 

" ' 1 . T h e request for the help of an エmperisl 

prince should be sought only in case of sheer neces-

sity, for instance, a esse when the Army and the N&vy 

coincide in opinions, but the circumstfinces call for 

the arbitration by an Imperial Prince. In such a 

case, there is a possibility of
 +

he. formation of sn 

Imperial Prince Csbinet. According to the circum-

stences as represented in the talk of the night before 

last, difficult problems still remrined unsettled. In 

such situation, it is absolutely impossible to request 

til Imperiel Prince for the solution of these nroblcms. 

"On the other hand, it may be construed cs 

an indication thrt there is no able msn among the 
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subjects, end moreover, if a war sho" Id happen between 

2
 America and Japan with en Imperial Prince Ccbinet, it 

3 would be a grave matter. In other words, if a member 

4 of the Imperial Fsmilies should be entrusted with the 

5 execution of the policies of such an important nature 

6 as even Premier KONOE could not carry out according 

to the decision of the Council in the Imperisl presence, 

8 and if it should turn out cgainst expectations, then 

9 the Imperial Families would be liable to be exposed es 

0 £ nstional object of hatred. 

"On the 16th, an interview was sought by W?.r 

2 Minister TOJO, so I received him £,t 3 n.m. Gt the 

3 office of the Lord Keeper of the Privy Seal. The talk 

4 wr,s oonnc.ctod with the extremely pressing political 

5 situetion. At thct meeting, TOJO suggested Prince 

6 HIGASHIKUNI ss the succecding premier, to which I 

7 expressed opposition for the foregoing reesons. 

8 Moreover, I expressed my opinion candidly as follows 

L9 in regard to the saving of the situation; 

20 "'In view of the present attitude of the 

21 Nevy, it is hardly possible to decide on the opening 

22 of hostilities apainst America. On the other hsnd, 

23 without doubt, the decision of the Council in the 

24 Imperial presence of September 6 is of the utmost 

25 importance. Now, if there should be even a little 
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doubt /about the attitude of the Nr-vy or the decision 

of the Council/,エ believe it will necessitate a com-

plete reconsideration. In short, without the decisive 

assurance of the Nsvy, the utmost precaution must be 

taken in plunging into an all-out wsr and gambling 

the fate of the. country.' 

"War Minister TOJO completely agreed with my 

opinion and went so for es to express the opinion 

that the decision of the Council in the Imperial 

presence was g cancer and that t :.s war could not bo 

carried out without the firm confidcnee of the Navy. 

Then we exchsngcd opinions to the el feet th?t, if the 

Y;
r

er Minister understood the situation to this extent, 

there should be some m o m s of re?ching r.n undcrst?nd-

ing with the Premier and of removing the deadlock with 

success. By this time, however, it vies reported thrt 

the Premier hed been collccting the resignrtions of 

the Cabinet members individually, rnd o.t 5 p.m. 

Prince KONOE proceeded to the P flacc end tendered 

the resignations to the Thr one. 

"An Impcricl order was immedietely given to 

me in regard to the remedial measures following the 

resignation en bloc of the KONOE Cabinet,. This time, 

various difficulties which had never been seen before 

appoercd end I could not come to a decision rerdily. 
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Firstly, there was no one for the candidacy of premier 

equal to Prince KONOF, and, secondly, the recent 

political change hed been c ause-d by the interpreta-

tion of the decision of the Council in the Imperial 

presence, even the opening of which had not been made 

public. Judging from the change of the recent situ-

etion, the minimum requisite of today was to withdrew 

the decision of the Council in the Imperial presence 

of September 6, but, on the other hr.nd, the so-called 

'ImpcriGl S t a n d a r d ,レ- t h a t is to scy, the decision 

that in case diplomatic negotiations seem hopeless by 

the first part of Octobcr, we will be determined to 

open hostilities against Araericc -- was in the hands 

of leading elements of the Army. Thus, in view of 

the rccent situation, the most difficult tcsk v/cs to 

withdrew the aforementioned decision and strrt from 

the very beginning. In other words, the man who was 

entrusted with the Imperial order at this time, end 

formed a Cabinet, must comply with the wishes of the 

Empt.ror in assuming leadership of the militery, es-

pecially of the Army, and also in bringing about the 

complete cooperation of the Army and the Navy. The 

person who was able to meet these conditions had to 

be c. mnn v/ho could sufficiently comDrcねend the 

development of the situction up to this time, and had 
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sincerely reviewed the circumstances 他 i c h hed brought 

about the present situation. In this respect, I 

thought, that a men who had been f.n outsider to drte 

would not only not be able fully to understand the 

s.bove-mentioncd situation, but would most likely bo 

uncble to resist the so-called 'Imperial Standard' 

end would inevitably destroy the significance of the 

recent political change. 

"At the Meeting of the Elder Statesmen on the 

17th, I recommended the ァ s r Minister /os the succeed-

ing Premier/ for the- ebove mentioned reasons end made 

a reply to the Thr one with tho approvc.1 of tho majority 

of the members. As s u c h � s the actual strte of things 

at that time, even if the Imperial order for the re-

organiz?tion of a Crbinet were issued, it would be 

difficult to ssve the situation. So I requested the 

Emperor thst, at the time of the issue of the Imperiel 

order to the War Minister TOJO, the Imperial message 

should also be bestowed on him cs follows, rnd thf-t, 

simultaneously, Nr.vy Minister OIKAWA should be special-

ly called end the following message bestowed on him, 

communicating to him the Imperial request for the 

eternal close cooperetion between the Army end the 

Nsvy. Thereafter, I communicr.tcd, by order of the 

Emperor, the following Imperial messr.ges to both 
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Ministers who had returned to the wp it ing room, c.nd 

thus, the decision of the Council in the Imperial 

presence of September 6 was completely withdrawn. 

"
1

1 presume thr.t the Imperial message hp.s 

just been given to you regarding the cooperative 

relet ions betv;ocn the Army snd the N a v y .エ under-

stand it is the Emperor
1

s wishes thrt, in deciding 

the fundcmentr.l netion?1 policy, it is nccessnry to 

investigate the domestic r.nd foreign affairs more 

broadly rnd deeply rnd to crrry out sn cErnest study 

of things without being bound by the decision of the 

Council in the Imperial presence of September 6. I 

communicate this to you by Impcricl order.' 

"To V'cr Minister TOJO; 

"I hereby authorize you to proceed with the 

organization of r Cr.Mnet. I wish you to conform to 

the provisions of the constitution. I believe that 

the present situetion is confrontf d with utmost 

difficulties. 

"At this time, I further wish thr.t the Army 

End the Nsvy should cooperr:te more closcly. 

"I will receive the Nevy Minister l?ter rnd 

tell him about this. 

"To Ncvy Minister 0IKA7/A: 

"I hr.ve received Wrr Minister TOJO ？.nd 
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1 ordered tho formation of c. Crbinct. I believe thct 

2 the present situation is confronted with utmost dif-

3 ficultios. As I have given words /to TOJO/ that Army 

4 nnd the Navy should cooperate more closely, you rlso 

5 must endecvour to cr.rry out my will. 

6 "In the merntime, the argument to rcstrr.in 

7 the Army end tide over the threatening crisis of war 

8 agoinst Amcrica end Britnin by appointing General 

9 UGAKI wss considcrrbly r.nd strongly stressed, end there 

1 0
 were demands directod. to me from vcrious quarters to 

11 heed this argument, but e s for myself, I estimated it 

12 wr.s unsuitable this time, according to the aforc-

13 mentioned reasons, Consequently, I finclly determined 

14 to recommend "ar Minister TOJO to the Throne. Being 

15 resolved to take over the whole responsibility upon 

16 myself, I submitted the recommendstion to the Emperor. 

17 "November, 1941." 

18 THE PRESIDENT: Do you hope to complete 

19 presenting the prosecution's cvidcnce,cpart from the 

20 Russian, todcy? 

m . COMYNS CARR: I am cfraid possibly not 

22 quite, your Honor. T
,:

c mr.y do it or we mr.y be just s 

2

3 few doenncnts short if the Tribunal rises r.t the 

;

u s u c l hour. 

THE PRESIDENT; W<. will rccoss for fifteen 



minutes. 

(Whereupon, v.t 1 4 4 5 � a recess was 

taken until 1500, after which the proceed-

ings were resumed r,s follows:) 
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MARSHAL OF THE COURT: The International 

Military Tribunal for the Far East is now resumed. 

MR. COMYWS CARR: I now offer in evidence 

a series of further extracts from his diary which 

explain themselves and which I will read。 Translation 

queries have been agreed. The corrections are made in the 

Court copies and in the errata sheet circulated to 

other parties. 

Prosecution document No ̂  l632W(3)« 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms, 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prose"ucion-s document 

No* 1632W(3) will receive exhibit No. 22 51. 

(Whereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked proseoution
s

 s ex-

hibit No. 22 51 and received in evidence.) 

MR. C O m S CARR: (Reading) 

"January 28th， 1932 
u

A t 2:00 p.m. todav, General MINAMI delivered 

a lecture on the latest situation in Manchuria before 

the Emperor in the Palace. I had the honor to attend 

the lecture in tho Imperial presence. 

"General MINAMI told us of his impressions 

resulting from his inspection of the general situation 

thrre. He explained that the brave action of our Japanese 

troops lay in the Japanese people
T

 s overall assistance 

w
o
l
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to thrro, their firm belief in victory, and their 

confidence in their own military skill.
 % 

"His conclusions regarding the Manchuria-

Mongolia question: 

"I. In thr> mattrr of our national defence, 

Japan's relation to the new state and its administration 

will be to take over its defence and by expediting the 

completion of the Kirin-Kwainoi Railway, make the 

Sea of Japan into a lakp and facilitate Japan's advance 

into the North I'ianchuria aroa„ Thud our national 

defence plans would be revolutionised. 
» 

"II. Japan'"lv!anchuria Joint Management - To 

take concreto measures against economic blockade from 

abroad,セhrrobv firmly establishing a method by which 

shp can live forevor as a Japan of the world. 

"III. Solution of the Population Problem -

It is not so difficult to solve the population problem 

provided that we givo our emigrants in Manchuria thp 

same protpction as that which they rocoivo in South 

America,, and provided that w p establish a colonial 

trooping system there, 

"When a nr-w statp is established in Manchuria 

and Mongolia,エ t M n k it is advisable to unify the presnnt 

three o? four Japanese organs in Manchuria and Mongolia 

under one Japanese organ to bo placed under a Government-
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Gonoral as f o l l o w s T h e Governor Gonrral." 

Thore is a plan I w o n t read, 

Noxt, 1632¥(^). 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual tprras, 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

1632W(5) will receive exhibit No. 2252. 

(Wherfrupon, the docuraont above 

rrferrod to was ！ n a r k e d prospcution's ex-

hibit No, 2252 and rrccivod in evidence.) 

M R , COMYNS CARR: (Rfiadins) 

"May 17th, 1932. 

"At noon today I mpt and had lunch with Prince 

KONOYE, Marquis INOUYE and Lt. Col
0
 SUZUKI at Baron 

HARADA
1

3 r^sidonce. Wo talkr-d about matters concerning 

measures to copn with the present incident as well as 

the succeeding cabinet Lt. Col. SUZUKI 

said that if a new Cabinet were organized under tho 

leadership of political parties, a second or third 

incident would occur It was suggested that a 

national coalition cabinet might be a solution. Vice-

Minister KOItrO spems to be in favour of a HIRANUMA 

Cabinet. It is thought that the direct stimulation for 

the incident this time was a declaration in respoct to 

the safeguarding of the political parties." 

1632W(6). 
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THE PRESIDENT: Mr. Levin. 

MR. LEVIN: Mr. President, I think it should 

be indicated that certain portions of the memoranda 

of this day are not in the exhibit. In other words, 

the exhibit itself does indicate that fact, but thnre 

is nothing in thr statement and I would like to direct 

the attention of tho Tribunal to that fact. 

MR. COMYNS. C A R R : 1 6 3 2 7 / ( 6 ) . 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual torms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Proscoution
J

s document 

N o . l632W(6-> will receive exhibit Nc^ 22^3. 

ぐ . h e r e u p o n , the document above 

referred to was rnarkrd prosecution' s ex-

hibit N o . 2253 and received in pvidence,) 

腿 ， C O M Y N t : CARR: (Rpading) 

"18 April 1933 

"Attended a party given by Vice-Minister OTANI 

at the Kinsui. In the middlp I left to attend a party 

held for Prince HIGASHIKUNI at the residence of Marquis 

INOUE, and I found there Prince KONOYE, Baron HARADA, 

Lieutenant-Colonel SUZUKI and Chief of the Information 

Bureau t H I R A T O R L 

"The discussion naturally extendc-d to the 

theory of the Japanr-so spirit, Viscount OKABE's abolition 

of the raptric avstem, and the severance of d i p l o m a n c 
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relations \v5.th Russia. 

"According to L t . Col.卜UZUKI there were two 

kinds of enemies, an absolute enemy and a relative 

enemy. As Russia aimed to destroy the national structure 

of Japan, ho pointed out Russia as an absolute enemy. 

He said that any attempt to conclude a non-aggresrfion 

pact with Russia is nothing more than a utilitarian 

calculation and must be denounced by all means。" 

1632W(9). 

THE P R E M D E N T : Adraitt^d cn the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Proso ^ition'ti document 

1632W(9) will rpceive exhibit No. 2254. 

(Wherrupon
5
 tho documont abovn 

referred to was marked prosecution“s ex-

hibit Fo. and received in evidence.) 

I®. COMYNS CARR: (Reading) 

"14th July, 1937 - (Extract) 

"ATJrUI came at 8:00 o
f

 clock。 We talked on 

matters such as discontinuing the dispatching of troops 

to North China, and became indignant
e
" 

This a f'ow days after the Marco Polo Brldg-e 

Incident. 

Iffl. LOGAN: May I say that that word is not 
n

灯e"， it is "He." 

MR. COMY貼 CARR: This has been before the 
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Language Board, your Honor, and エ am reading what I 

understand is their version. 

THE PRESIDENT: The c a p i t a l " H " appears 

so indistinctly as to easily be taken as a "W". It 

is "H» and it is "He". 

m „ COHYNト CARR: It is "He", your Honor. If 

it is
 l!

He' your Honor, is there anything between 

"and" and
 u

bpcame"in the last lino in your Honor's 

copy? 

THE F脚 I D E N T : No. 

i a . COMYNt? CARR: 1632W(10) • 

THE PRE卜IDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Document 1632W(10) 

叩 i l l receive exhibit No. 2255* 

(Whereupon, the document above 

referred to was narked prosecution
1

s ex-

hibit No. 22^5 and received in evidence.) 

m . COMYNS CARR: (Reading) 

"27 October 1937 

"I attended the extraordinary session of the 

abinet, in which wr decided on our statement and answer 

;o the invitation to the Council in connection with the 

2 4
W i n e - P o w e r Pact." 

25 
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KIDO was no-w Education Minister. 

1632(W)11. 

THE PRESIDENT? Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF TKS COUHTs Prosecution document 

N o . 1632^(11) will receive exhibit N o . 2 2 % . 

(Whereupon, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

N o . 2256 and received in evidence.) 
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M R . COMYNS CARR (Reading): 

"3 November 1937. War Minister SUGIYAMA 

visited me at 6:00 o ' c l o c k .耵 e freely exchanged 

views on matters such as saving of the situation, 

the establishment of the Imperial General Headquarters, 

the declaration of w a r , etc." 

1632W (13). 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

N o . 1632W (13) will receive exhibit No‘ 2257. 

(Whereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 2257 and received in evidence.) 

腿 . C O M Y N S CARR (Reading): 

"16 November 1937. At 10 a.m. I called on 

Prince KONOYE at the Premier's official residence. I 

urged him as follows: Concerning the matter mentioned 

yesterday, I thought that the action would have an 
1 9

 adverse influence on financial and other circles, 

particularly with respect to the rate of exchange. I 

am very much concerned over how the war situation might 

be affected if it should drop heavily. 

'"Whatever the case might be in the event of 

つ h e war changing into a defensive operation, if there 

'下 e r e a commotion in the internal politics now when we 
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are on the offensive, the attitude of foreign 

countries, which had finally turned serious would be 

changed by it. This must be avoided by all means. 

"Moreover I said that even if he should 

resign, nine chances out of ten the Emperor would 

again order him to form a cabinet, and if he should 

refuse this command, I should also be unable to 

explain it to the elder statesman (GENRO) and the 

others. I said that if he should finally make up his 

mind to do it, that I should like to talk casually 

about the future to M r . Seihin IKEDA and the Chief of 

the I'lilitarj'- Affairs Bureau, M C H I J I N I , beforehand. He 

said 'wait a little while.' Moreover he decided that 

in tl‘event of an Imperial command he would accept. 

The talk ended for the time being." 

1632W (14). 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 1632W (14) will receive exhibit No. 2258. 

(Whereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 2258 and received in evidence.) 

M R . COMYNS CARR (Reading): 

"19th November, 1937. Attended the Cabinet 

25 session at 10 a.m. We decided the matter respecting 



16,222 

the liaison between the Imperial General Headquarters 

and the Government. I said that the present Imperial 

General Headquarters Regulations cover incidents as 

well as w a r , but エ asked if the degree and extent of 

an incident had been studied. 

"The War Minister replied though he had never 

tried to find a definition on the degree of an incident 

he considered that only in the case of an incident of 

such an extent as to require a declaration of w a r , 

that is, if the mobilization of the army must be 

ordered, would Imperial Headquarters be established." 

1632W (15). 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLEPJC 07 THE COURT; Prosecution's document 

No. 1632W (1ヲ）will receive exhibit No. 2259. 

(Whereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 2259 and received in evidence.) 

MR。 COMIFS CARR (Reading): 

"21st December, 1937. At 10 a.m. I attended 

a Cabinet meeting in which we deliberated on the 

negotiations with China, draft of the answer to the 

German Ambassador, and counter-measures for the China 

A f f a i r .エ urged the neeessity of creating cultural 

measures in North China." 
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1632W (16). 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLEHK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

N o . 1 6 3 2 W (16) will receive exhibit No. 2260. 

(Whereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 2260 and received in evidence.) 

M R . COMYNS CARH (Reading): 

"14th January, 1938. At 10:00 a.m. attended 

the Cabinet Meeting held at the Prime Minister's 

Official Residence. Discussed about our epoch-making 

announcement concerning the China Affair. We continued 

our discussion through the afternoon. 

"At the request of the German Ambassador, 

the Minister of Foreign Affairs met him at 4:30 p.m. 

The Ambassador said that the German Ambassador in 

China had handed him the answer of the Chiang Kai-shek 

C-overnraent to the effect that as late as today, it 

T/ished to know the meaning; of the conditions. 

"As we thought that it lacked sincerity, we 

decided to make an announcement of a fixed policy to 

the effect that vie would have nothing to do with the 

national •government, but would negotiate with the new 

Chinese Government which we expect to be established 

and join it in the promotion of the newly rising China 
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and the peace of Asia. Concluded the meeting at 

5:3〇 p.m." 

I-IIROTA was Foreign Minister at this date. 

1632W (18a). 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terns. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

N o . 1632W (18a) will receive exhibit N o . 226l. 

(Whereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

F o . 226l and. received in evidence.) 

M R . COMYNS CARR (Reading): 

"May 1 9 t h � 1938. At 4:00 o'clock I conversed 

with President HONJO. He expressed the folioヲing 

opinion in regard to the preparations after the battle 

of Suchow. I promised to do my best since I agreed 

generally with his opinion. 

"It may be difficult to anticipate any-

striking changes as a result of the Battle of Suchow 

as it appears also that a fairly large portion of the 

enemy managed to run away. Ho?了ever, even in C M n a there 

is a considerable amount of peace talk. There is in-

formation that when Vifu-Pei-Fu protested to Tang-Shao-I 

as to the attitude of Chiang Kai-shek, Tang replied to 

the effect that although Chiang's attitude before the 

Incident was improper, he approved of Chiang's attitude 
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and actions since the Incident. It is said that Tang 

has contacted Kao-Tsung-Wu, so it could be thought 

that perhaps there may be some sort of a negotiation 

from China. Before making a statement to the effect 

that we v/ill have nothing to do v/ith the Chiang 

Government, it is necessary to give due consideration 

and provide room for breaking the impasse. 

"After the battle of Suchow, it is on one 

hand., necessary to show an attitude of advancing to 

Hankow, but, at the same time, it is essential to 

take steps for settling the Incident. If things do 

not turn out as hoped for, I believe it マ ‘ ' o u l d , by all 

means, be necessary* to establish a close connection 

also with the Supreme Comiiiand anc
1

,?;ith the present 

Reserve Fund of ¥300,000,000 and ¥300,000,000 in 

gold, enter into protracted warfare, by planning to 

continue for about three years. Etc." 

16327/ (19). 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

N o . 1632W (19) will receive exhibit N o . 2262. 

(Whereupon, the document above 

referred to vias marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 2262 and received in evidence.) 

MI“ C O 廳 S CARR (Reading): 
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"August 9th, 1 9 3 8 .エ attended the Cabinet 

meeting held at 10:00 a.m. and heard about the progress 

of Changkufeng incident from the War Minister and the 

Foreign Minister. After the rueeting I heard from the 

Premier that the German Foreign Minister von Ribbentrop 

made a very important proposal to Ambassador OSHIMA 

(Ambassador TOGO was ignorant of this fact). 

Von Ribbentrop had consulted with Hitler for four 

hours before he made this proposal (Ambassador OUT 

was also ignorant about it). Lt. Col. ICASAHARA returned 

by airplane with the above message. 

"The essence of this proposal is to reinforce 

the relationship between Japan and Germany which con-

tains three clauses. 

"The third clause provides that in case one 

nation is attacked by a third, country, the other will 

render military aid. It is a serious matter. According 

co von Ribbentrop's explanation, Italy will become a 

participant in this treaty and his words suggest that 

the negotiations with Italy have already begun. The 

Navy objects to this clause. Von Ribbentrop predicts 

the European political situation as follows=
 l

War with 

Russia is inevitable； peaceful measures will be taken 

towards the Czechs; Anglo-French relationship is so 

intimate that it is impossible to cause disunity between 
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them; America will aid England and France financially 

"but not militarily; Rumania will remain neutral, and 

Hungary can be made an ally." 

ITAGAKエ was War Minister at this date. 

1632W (21). 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 1632W (21) will receive exhibit No. 2263. 

(Whereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 2263 and received 111 evidence,) 
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M R . COMYNS CAHRi (Reading) 

"September 7,1938： 

" . . . . D i n e d with Prince KONOYE, Baron 

HARADA, Marquis MATEUDAIRA, and the widow of 

TSUGARU at" -- I can't read that — " a t 6:30 p . m . 

Had a friendly talk vith Prince KONOYE in a separate 

room. I learned th;..t the following is in general the 

state of affairs in regard to the head of the new 

political party: 

"After the fall of Hakko, the changes in 

thw situation may cause a condition vjしich may-

necessitate our dealing with Chiang Kai-shek. 

Furthermore, there are domestic conditions calling 

for considerable concern such as unemployment and 

other matters. From the viewpoint that there is 

a necessity for arranging a so-called 'one nation-one 

party' system "by incorporating all the political 

parties into one body in order to deal v:ith the 

above problems, AKIYAiMA, KIT A, KUHARA, ASO, &nd 

others are participating in the movement. It is 

scid that through the mediation of A I C E T A )駆 D A 

also met AldYAMA recently. Prince KONOYE said that 

he is giving an ambiguous answer thinking that 

perhaps it would be inadvisable to refuse the 

party leadership if the political party merger • 
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movement should progress according to the afore-

mentioned meaning. 

"Furthermore, Prince KONOYE revealed his 

true mind by saying, 'I came up against the outbreak 

of the China Incident since the formation of my 

cabinet, and have continued to make various pains-

taking efforts丨 Hovidver, in viewing ttkj perspective 

after the fall of Nankirf?, the result of the declara-

tion of January 16th, the effects and showing cf the 

estatlishment of the new Regime, e t c ” there are many 

cases ^here matters have gone contrary to my expecta-

tions . I f , on top of this, things should finally 

lead to having to deal with Chiang Kai-shek, there 

is nothing I can do but resign since the responsi-

bilities thereof would be too heavy.' Moreover 

he recalled that it could also be surmised that the 

recent backbiting agcinst tte Premier's policy, etc., 

by the UGAKI circle is being done with the inten-

tion of eventually overthrowing this cabinet. I 

therefore stressed the fact that it was wholly out 

of the question for the Premier to quit at this time 

due to dealing with Chiang Kai-shek and to have the 

new political situation dealt with by Foreign 

Minister UGAKI‘s policies. I told him that it 

would probably result in a disturbance within the 
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country, and that there was sufficient reason to 

fear that this would result in our nation's defeat. 

I emphasized that it was necessary for him not to 

think of such a thing and go ahead, mustering up 

his courage once more, and for this purpose it might 

be unavoidable for him to accept the leadership of 

the new t h r t y if necessary.
 r r

e talted further 

about the forming of the ne?7 party taking every 

possible circumstance into consideration, but we 

both eventually agreed that the secretcry-general's 

test of selecting men is extrer.3.'マ difficult, We 

further proir.ised each other thc.t .’73 would study tliis 

matter more thoroughly. 

"The Right Wing is also of the opinion 

that peace between Japan ？.nd China must "be brought 

about even by dealing with G hi an g-Ea i-s hek, 

and TOYAMA and SUENAGA agree to this. He said that 

he v;as contacted by SUENAGA on the above point. 

"As for the military, it is said that the 

General Staff is generally of the above opinion, and 

that Lt. Col. IMADA and his Imperial Highness 

Prince CEICHIBtT are its leaders. At first War 

Minister エ T A G A K エ was inclined to be opposed to 

this but lately he hc.s come almost to agree with 

it. It is said that the situation is at a deadlock 
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L . 

because TOJO snd KAGESA have the opposite opinion. 

"エ returned home at II a. m." 

TOJO was then Vice-Minister. 

1632W (22)„ 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual 

terms. 

CLERK OF TIE COURT； Prosecution document 

1632W (22) will receive exhibit 2264. 

(Whereupon, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution
1

s exhibit 

N o . 2264 and received in evidence.) 

I®。COMYNS CARR (Reading) : "2 Nov, 1938. 

"At 10200 a. m . I attended the conference 

of the Privy C o u n c i l . I t was decided to cease 

cooperating with the various bodies of t h e League 

of Nations." 

1632W (24). 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms 

CLERK OF THE C0UE.T5 Prosecution document 

N o . 1 6 3 2 W (24) will receive exhibit N
n
. 2265. 

(Whereupon, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution
1

s exhibit 

No. 226う and received in evidence.) 

m。 C O M Y N S CARR (Reading) ； "26 Dec. 1938. 

"At Is00 p . m . I called on Baron HIRANUMA 
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at his residence. He expressed his opinion on the 

resignation of KONOYE Cabinet. He insisted that 

they rrast csrry on. His reason was that it was 

reported that Wang Chao-ming had escaped from 

Chungking and that the plot was proceeding steadily. 

Even from the viewpoint of loyalty, it is undesirable 

that Princ ； KONOYE should resign his post in the 

present situation." 

1632W (25). 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF TKE GOT^T ； Prosecution document 

N o . 1 6 3 2 W (25) will receive exhibit No. 2266. 

(Whereupon, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 22bb and received in evidence.) 

腿 。 C O M Y N S CARR (Reading) : "December 2% 

1938. 

"At 9:00 a. m . Maj. Gen. Teichi SUZUKI 

visited m e . He insisted that KONOYE's Cabinet should 

carry on. 

"At 7:00 p . m . the Prime Minister*s 

Secretary, ICISHI, telephoned me and エ called on 

Prince KONOYE at his Okilajbo residence at 8:00 

o'clock. Finance Minister エ K E D A also went there, 

war Minister ェ T A G A K I vras already present. The 
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War Minister explained the development of the 

scheme and the international situation." 

1632W (26). 

THE PRESIDENT; Admitted on the usual terms， 

CLERK OF THE COURT; Prosecution document 

No。 1632W (26) will receive exhibit N o . 2267. 

(Whereupon, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

N o . 2267 and received in evidence.) 

M R . COMYNS CARR (Reading)s " 5 Jan. 1939* 

"Received an invitation from Baren HIRA-

K U M , and called on him at 9s 50 a . ir. at the offi-

cial residence of the Minister of Justice. He 

requested me to take the position of Home Minister 

on the ground that the nomination was a predetermined 

one end almost constituted a condition a
s
 the result 

of his talk with Prince KONOYE. I then consented, 

on condition, that I might dispose of the many-

different pending problems in the Ministry at my 

discretion. I was requested, at the sc.me time, 

to take up the post of the Welfare Minister, to 

which I assented on condition that the full-time 

Minister sb/ruld take up his post as soon as 

possible. At 1 p . m . I reported the circumstances 

to Secretary KOREMATSU and Vice-Minister H I R O S E . 
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11

 As the result of several negotiations 

over tire telephone vjith Justice Minister SHIONO, 

Baron HIRANIMA also approved my proposal to promote 

Vice Kinister HIROSE. KIROSE was immediately 

informed and sent to the cabinet organization head-

quarters 

1632W (27). 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms, 

CL^RK OF THE COURT； Prosecution document 

M t d 。 1 6 3 2 W (27) will receive exhibit No. 2268. 

(^horeupon, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

N o , 2268 and received in evidence.) 

m . COMYNS CARR (Reading) ; "31 Mcrch 1939. 

"Conferred at 1 p . m . with the Premier on 

the rtroblems of the Military Alliance between Japan 

and Germany and of t he appointment of new cabinet 

members, etc. At 4 p . m.エ"went; to the Tokyo Club, 

and met Prince KONOYE there. We had not met for 

sorae time, but exchanged opinions until 6 p . m . on 

the political situation and the policy towards the 

I n c M e n t 

KIRANUMA was the Premier. 

1632W (28). 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms 
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CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution document 

N o . 1632W (28) will receive; exhibit No. 2269. 

(Whereupon, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

N o . 2269 and received in evidence.) 

ME. COMYNS CARR ( R e a d i n g ) : " 1 9 April 1939. 

"At 1:30 p . m . I conferred with Premier 

HIRANUMA on the Military Alliance (T. K . between 

Germany, Italy and Japan/ and emphasized that, in 

the event of its ending in failure, it m u l d have a 

dangerous effect on the domestic situation and 

would be a decisive disadvantage to the settlement 

of the China Incident, and requested him セ o (t. N . 

therefore/ exert his increased efforts." 

1632W (29). 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms, 

CLERK OF THE COIRT: Prosecution document 

N o . 1632W(29) will receive exhibit No. 2270. 

(Fレ,ereupon, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution* s exhibit 

No. 2270 and received in evidence.) 

m . COMYNS CARR (Reading) : "2 May 1939. 

"Met with Chief Secretary OTA at p p . m . 

at the Premier's official residence. ' Heard from 

him the details of thw disagreement between Army 
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and Navy circles in regard to the liilitary Alliance. 

"At 8 p . m , I called on the Navy Minister 

to hear of the recent progress in the Military 

Alliance end we exchsnged views as to the saving 

of the situation. 

"I stressed tliat there Is no reason to 

force the conclusion of the Military Alliance, as 

it depends on the will of the othyr parties. But 

if it fails after so much effort, it would not 

only have a bad influence on cur policy towards 

the Sino-Japanese Incident, but it "would inevi-

tably bring about a feeling of uneasiness and 

dissatisfaction on the part of the people, espe-

cially if the main cc.usu of failure were due to 

disagreements between the Army.srnd Navy on such 

an important national policy. Therefore it must 

be avoided by all means. And so we must d o our 

utmost to unify public opinion as far as possible, 

even if we should fail to conclude the Treaty. 

The Navy Minister was entirely of tbe same opinion 

snd promised me to exert himself to follow the 

above line. I felt somewhat relieved and returned 

home at 10 p . m." 

1632W (30). 

THE PRESIDENT； Admitted on the usual 
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terms. 

CLEHr OF TIE COURT； Prosecution document 

N o . 1632W (30) will receive exhibit No. 2271. 

hereupon, the document above re-

ferred to wc.s marked prosecution's exhibit 

N o . 2271 and received in evidence.) 

TEE PRESIDENT: Mr. Carr, would you defer 

reCiding these excerpts until each Judge has a copy? 

M R . COMYNS CARR； I beg your pardon. 

(Reading)； "4 August 1939. 

"At noon,エヰresented the following views 

to War Minister ITAGAKI on the question of the Llili-

tsry Alliance i?ith Germany and Italy, and on talks 

of political changes connected with it, snd he 

agreed with them. 

"According to general rumor the Army has 

decided to conclude the Military Alliance as soon 

as nossible, and if the proposal is not accepted at 

the C： binet Meeting, the '7ar Minister is determined 

to resign, notwithstanding the faot thst it w i l l • 

unavoidably result in the resignation of the entire 

C-binet. If we observe this from the present state 

of internal affairs the people appear son腕hat tired 

of the war. They r.ro hoping for a settlement of the 

Incident, so they have pinned their hopes on the 
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trend ^jhich is gradtially pushing a settlement of 

conditions, such as the success of the Tokyo 

Conference and the establishment of the VJang Regime. 

This is splendid； but if the reverse should happen, 

i. e., if the Tokyo Conference does not materialize, 

end the effort to establish the Wang Regime should 

f a i l , a syrious situation might develop. It would 

be unwise to bring the political situation to a head 

by taking up this matter during tlie Anglo-Japanese 

Conference. The last time, shortly sfter ？
T

a n g 

escaped from Chungking, the ""ONOiE Cabinet fell; 

nrr' this time, it vjould be extremely bad policy 

should the HIRANUMA Cabinet resign prior to the 

establishment nf the regime, after Y
r

ang has taken 

all the trouble to come to Tokyo to confer i®ith 

the Cabinet ministers. I believe that it is best, 

if possible, to have the political change after 

the Wang Regime is established. It is rumored that 

Army circles insist on effecting martial law, 

forcibly in case of political change., end they 

intend gradually to adopt a military administra-

tion. 

"But I think we :,:ust resist such methods 

with all our might, especially so in the present 

situation. In case nf political change. if_the 
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Army and the Nr.vy are perirdttod to continue to 

balk one another, and the Emperor should order the 

J 

formation of a new Cabinet, it is certain that it 

would be impossible to form one. T -erefore, I think 

that it is absolutely necessary for the Army and 

Navy to find a way to break their deadlock before 

the political change. So エ want you (T。 N。 ITAGAKI/ 

to get in touch with all concerned if you by any 

chance make up your mind. 

"I told the Premier aトcut the result of the 

above talk, and -we exchanged opinions. I also 

relayed the above talk to the Minister of Justice 
end to the Chief Cabinet Secretary." 
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1632-W-32. 

THE PHESILEKT： Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

1632-W-32 will receive exhibit N o . 2272. 

(Whereupon, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

No. 2272 and received in evidence.) 

B/iR. CSMYNS CARR: (Reading): 

"28th August, 

"A cabinet meeting was held at the Premier's 

official residence at 9 a.m. Premier HIRANUMA ex-

plained about the reasons why the Cabinet should re-

sign en bloc, and requested all the Cabinet Minis-

ters to agree with his opinion. His proposal was 

unanimously approved and all tendered their resigna-

tions . T h e Premier immediately proceeded to the 

Imperial Palace
 5
 and after being received in audience 

by the Emperor, presented to the Throne all the re-

signations of the Cabinet Ministers. But the Emperor 

requested that all Cabinet Ministers should remain 

in their present posts until further notice. 

"At 1:30 p.m. Nazomi NAKAGAWA called on me to 

express his gratitude for the.Imperisl nomination as 

a member of the House of Peers. 

"At 8:00 p.m. Chief KATO of the Gendarmerie 
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visited m e . He said there was a rumor that 

Lieutenant-General TADA was to be appointed. War 

Minister. He added he was very anxious that this 

might in-tsnsify ti.&n bbtM&en：-Mffr^nt; :gr.o©ps 

w i t h l ^ ' ? t h ' e ^ . . -
/
 and sought my opinion to 

prevent it. I answered that, as an outsider, I 

could do nothing about it. 

"At 8:50 p.m. General Nobuyuki ABE was summoned 

by the Emperor and was ordered to organize a new 

Cabinet. 

"At 11:30 p.m. Prince KONOYE telephoned me a M 

informed, me of the following fact. The Prince 

seemed to be perplexed and asked, my oninion about it. 

"According to the Prince, he war paid a visit 

by General ABE and the General told him that he had 

been ordered, by the Emperor to organize a new 

Cabinet and that the Emperor had given him instruc-

tions on the following three points, which, n'o.t; being 

expected
5
 seemed to embarrass the General very much. 

" 1 . E i t h e r UMEZU or HATA should be appointed 

1/var Minister. 

"2. Diplomatic policy should follow the line 

of cooperation with Britain and the United States. 

"3. DIacrB±ibrt mu-s;t. -be‘. iped:.-: :" .... in choosing 

the Home Minister and the Justice Minister, as the 
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maintenance of public order was of supreme im-

portance . 

"After thinking over the matter,エ telephoned 

Prince KONOYE at 0〇3〇 a.m. end expressed my opinion 

to him as follows, with which the Prince agreed. 

"Points 2 and 3 above could in any case be dis-

posed of at the discretion of Generel a B E , but as 

for the nominstion of the War Minister by the Em-

peror , t h e r e was a danger, if it were left to take 

its own course, that it might bring about a clash 

with military circles. So it was edvisable that 

the Emperor summon the War Minister or let the Chief 

Aide-de-camp to his Majesty convey to the Array the 

Imperial Order given to General ABE as to the selec-

tion of the Weir Minister. 

"I requested Prince KONOYE to convey my opinion 

to General ABE." 

I632-W-33. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms, 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

N o . 1 6 3 2 - W - 3 3 will receive exhibit N o . 2273. 

(Whereupon, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

N o . 2273 and received in evidence.) 

M l . COMYNS CABH: (Heading)： 
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"10th N o v e m b e r , 1 9 3 9 . 

"At 10:00 a . m . Marquis MATSUDAIRa visited m e . 

A s I have been contemplating, at the request of 

Prince KONOYE, the method of recommending the suc-

ceeding Premier to the Throne in case of the resig-

nation of the Cabinet, I had a talk over the matter 

with the Marquis. The gist of my opinion is as 

follows: 

"When I had an interview recently with the Lord 

Keeper of the Privy Seal, his opinion on this question 

was that no other method except the present one was 

conceivable for h i m , because he could not think of 

any other plan even when the elder statesman was 

still alive and w e l l . As for m e , there was no reason 

to raise any objection to the above opinion, b u t I 

thought we ought to consider beforehand the method 

in question after the death of the elder statesman. 

Besides， judging from the recent atmosphere of 

political circles, in which the present method wes 

being criticised unfavorably, there was a need for 

setting up a new method which would be more objective 

than the present o n e . The authorized limit of powers 

of both the offices of the Lord Keeper of the Privy 

Seal and of the President of the Privy Council were 

prescribed by the Government Organization Ordinance, 
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and so there was some doubt as to whether the 

office of the Lord Keeper of the Privy Seal, which 

was responsible to the Emperor as his adviser, was 

really compatible with the act of recommending a 

Premier to the Throne. Moreover, from the political 

point of view, it was not desirable that high 

officials who were so close to the Emperor should 

hold the reins of political power. So, in the future, 

the office of the Lord Keeper of the Privy Seal should 

be strictly confined, to that of the adviser to the 

Emperor, but in the case of an 'en bloc
1

 resignation 

of the Cabinet, the Emperor would do well to consult 

with former Prime Ministers as to the succeeding 

Premier,not limited to those accorded the status 

of former Premier. In case the number of ex-Prime 

Ministers was too small, ex-Ministers of State might 

be added to the meeting. Whether the Lord Privy 

Seal should participate in it by the special order 

of the Emperor, or whether he should not take part 

in it at all but only act as adviser to the Emperor 

when he investigated the matter, needs further con-

sideratioru The above principle could be applied to 

the President of the Privy C o u n c i l . I believed that 

both the Lord Privy Seal and the President of the 

Privy Council should be strictly separated, from the 
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function of recommending succeeding Premiers for the 

time being. 

"In the event of the Emperor asking the opinion 

of ex-Premiers, they should, hold a conference to 

discuss the question, but it is undesirable that 

they should decide the matter by vote. They should 

report to the Throne all the opinions expressed in 

the conference together with the minority opinion 

as material for the judgment of the Emperor. 

"I expressed my opinions as o'ddvc-, to which the 

Marquis assented, and we promised eaoh other to 

discuss the matter further. 

"At 1:30 p.m.ェ called on Prince K O N O Y E at his 

residence at Ogikubo. After having a talk on the 

general situation both at home and abroad, I told him 

about ray opinions which エ had told Marquis li'I/iTSUDAIRii. 

in the morning. Prince KONOYE gave his full assent 

to my opinions. He even hoped to carry out the plan 

at the first opportunity, and requested me to take 

proper measures as soon as possible. But エ wanted 

him to make a further study on this problem, since 

it was difficult to carry it out while the elder 

statesman is still active. Then Prince KONCYE asked 

me whether ray opinion meant, in the end, the aboli-

tion of the office of the Lord Privy S e a l .ェ answered 



16,246 

to the effect that it might seem so from the logical 

point of view, but in fact エ did not favor the 

abolition, for there would be many important affairs 

of State left for him as the adviser to the Emperor. 

We parted at 3 p.m." 

ム t this date KIDO was out of office. 

I 6 3 2 - W - 3 4 . 

TLE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 1632-W-34- will receive exhibit No. 2274. 

(Whereupon, the document obove re-

ferred to was marked prosecution
1

s exhibit 

No. 2274- and received in evidence.) 

MF“ COMYNS CARR: (Reading): 

"10 May '40. 

"At 9:00 a.m. K r . IKEZムKI called and sounded 

out my opinion in regard to the new political party 

of which Prince KONOYE is to be President, with me 

as Vice-President, and with regard to the formation 

of e Cabinet. I frankly expressed my opinion that 

as long as Prince KONOYE stays in the political field, 

I would like to have him take the leadership end that 

I would support him to the last, as I had no inten-

tion of forming any other new political party." 

1 6 3 2 - W - 3 5 . 
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THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 1632-W-35 will receive exhibit No. 2275. 

(Whereupon, the document above re-

ferred. to was marked prosecution
1

s exhibit 

N o . 2275 and received in evidence.) 

M R . COMYNS CARR: (Reading)： 

"26th May, 1940. 

"Dined with Prince KONOYE and Count a h i m . at 

Kioicho Kinsui at 6:00 p.m; we discussed the problem 

of the new political party and agreed upon the fol-

lowing : 

" 1 . T h e formation of a new political party-

should not be carried out positively prior to the 

acceptance of the Imperial Mandate. 

"Consideration, however, shall be given to this 

peltt when the movement for the establishment of a 

new party is commenced by the political parties 

themselves. 

"2. When the Imperial Mandate is issued the 

following should be considered: 

"(a) A supreme national defense conference is 

to be established between the Chiefs of General 

Staff of both the ^rmy and Navy, the Premier, and the 

War and Navy Ministers. 
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"(b) The desires of the A m y and Navy concerning 

national defense, foreign Affairs and finance shall 

be considered. 

"(c) By announcing the resolution for the es-

tablishment of a new political party, the dissolution 

of all political parties shall be requested. 

"3. The Cabinet shall be composed of only the 

Premier, the War Minister and the Navy Minister, while 

other posts shall be held additionally by them. 

According to circumstances, hov/evcr, two or three 

members of the Cabinet (for 5nstaric3, Minister of 

Foreign Affairs, etc.) shall be appointed. 

"4. The remainder of the cabinet shall be 

selected fr'om the most able members of the new party 

after its formation. The ministers already appointed 

prior to the establishment of the new party shall be 

mcde to join the party," 

1632-W-31. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terras. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

N o . 1 6 3 2 - W - 3 1 will receive exhibit N o . 2276. 

(Whereupc-n, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution
1

s exhibit . 

N o . 2276 and received in evidence.) 
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M i . COMYNS C a R R : (Heading)： 

"1st June, 1940. 

"By request of the Imperial Household Minister 

I called at his official residence at 10:30 a.m. 

and was asked to accept the appointment of Lord 

Keeper of the Privy S e a l . I thought I was not fitted 

tc the post but understood that it was an unanimous 

recommendation of all the higher officials, including 

Prince KONOYE, Lord Keeper YUASA, Premier Y0NAI and 

Prince SAI0NJI. Unde,xr the circumstances, I wished to 

withhold my answer until I had consulted about the 

matter with Prince KONOYE. I went to KONOYE"s resi-

dence at Ogikubo at 11:30 a.m. After lunch we ex-

changed views freely. After arriving at the con-

clusion that there was no alternative but to p.ccept 

the office, I reported my acceptance by telephone 

to the Imperial Household Minister. 

"This morning at 8:30, M r . Tadstaka IKEZAKエ came 

and told me how important my role would be in con-

nection with the new Party. He strongly urged me to 

refuse the offer of the pest of Lord Keeper of the 

Privy Seal." 

I632-W-43. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 
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I632-W-43 will receive exhibit No. 2277. 

(Whereupon, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution's exhibit 

Mo. 2277 and received in evidence. 

M R . COMYNS CiJm: (Reading)： 

"21st SSpttenber, 1940. 

"The Chief Aide-de-Camp called at 10:30 and 

stated that French Indo-China authorities were showing 

signs of concessions in regard to the question cf our 

penetration into French エ n d o - G h i n a » 

"Foreign Minister M^TSUOKu repし:'ted over the 

telephone that telegraphic instructions had reached 

the German side since this morning. 

"I reported the above to His Majesty. With re-

gard to the solution of the China Incident, I ex-

pressed my opinion to His Majesty to the effect that 

we should have eventually to oppose both England and 

the United States if we conclude a military alliance 

with Germany and Italy. We should therefore make 

necessary adjustments regarding our relations with 

China as socn as possible." 

Your H o n o r , l o c k i n g at the clock and. at the 

work remaining to be done, I think that we could con-

clude the prosecution case tonight, if the Tribunal 

would concede us a comparatively few minutes overtime. 
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THE PRESIDENT: We are all agreed to sit 

late. 

M R . COMYNS CARR: 1632-W-45. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution's document 

No. 1632-W-4-5 will receive exhibit No. 2278. 

(Whereupon, the document above re-

ferred. to was marked prosecution's ozhibitt 

N o . 2278 and received in evidence.) 
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m . COMYNS CARR : (Reading). 

"From 2sOO p.m. until 2:45 p.m. I was granted 
I 

an audience and was asked for my opinion regarding the 

settlement of the China -Incident. His Majesty wanted 
！ 

to knr^v what kind of policy we should take if the in-

cident were prolonged by the failure of Chungking 

negotiations, and we are forced to conclude a treaty 

with the Wang Government. 

"In reply to His Majesty's query エ said "As 

Your Majesty says, the incident w:.ll be a prolonged 

war and yet it would be difficult for us to defeat 

Chungking completely at this time, in view of the pre-

sent exhausted state of our power. Uncer the circum-

stances , w e should be fully prepared to complete our 

national strength, while securing key points. Today, 

we should exercise the utmost caution in compromising 

with positive action proponents for it will cause in-

ability to bring about the submission of the enemy 

and also the completion of our national strength. 

It is indeed alarming to think of the future of the 

country." 

1632W (70)。 

THE PRESII-ENT; Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT； Prosecution document 

N o . 1 6 3 2 W (70) will receive exhibit No. 2279. 
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(Whereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution exhibit 

N o . 2279 and received in evidence.) 

MR。 COMYNS CARR: (Heading). 

"September 25th, 194-1. (Extract). 

"Ambassador SHIGEMITSU visited me at 9 a.m. 

to talk about the negotiations between the U.S.A. 

and this c o u n t r y . . . . 

"The Chief Aide-de-Camp visited me at 1 p.m. 

and told m e ^ V o u t the report of the Chief of the Army 

General Staff to be submitted to the Throne." 

1632W (73). 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the usual terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT; Prosecution document 

No. 1632W (73) will receive exhibit No. 2280. 

(Whereupon, the document above 

referred to was marked prosecution exhibix 

N o . 228.0 and received in evidence.) 

M R . COMYNS CARR: (Reading). 

"October 1st, 1 9 ^ - 1 - ( E x t r a c t ) . 

"SUZUKI, President of the Planning Board, 

visited me at 9 A . M . to have an informal talk about 

our national policy towards the U.S.A." 
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May I now take the opportunity of intro-

ducing my friend M r . Glanville Brown who hr.s come 

from England to replace my late colleague, M r . D r v i s . 

He would have dealt with the ARAKI exhibits the 

other day, but he was indisposed end will now read 

one which was inadvertently omitted. 

THE- PRESIDENT: M r . Brown. 

M R . LOGAN: If the Tribunal pleases --

THE' PRESIDENT: Do let me greet M r . Brown, 

M r . Logcn. 

M r . Logan. 

M R . LOGAN: If the Tribunal please, with 

respect to all these exhibits oust introduced from 

KIDO•s Diary, they have been rushed through in the 

past few days, and I cooperatc-d ？.s much as possible 

with the prosecution? and there may be further 

changes with respect to some of them. May I ask 

leave to submit them to the Language Board if and 

when they should come up so they can be corrected? 

THE PRESIDENT: We will submit any that you 

suggest centain errors, M r . Logan. 

M r . B r o w n . 

M R . BROWN: May it please the T r i b u n a l , I 

now offer in evidence prosecution document N o . 

2155-C of the same volume which becsrae exhibits 2223 
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and 2223A. It is a speech by ARAKI on the first 

anniversary of the China Incident, printed in the 

Education Ministry Review of July 1 , 1 9 3 8 . 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted ®n the U S U P I terms. 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution document 

2155-C will receive exhibit N o . 2281, 

(Whereupon, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution^s exhibit 

N o . 2281 and received in evidence.) 

M R . BROWN: I will read the passage on 

page 2: 

"Yet Chiang
l

s bigoted thought has net shown 

any symptom of chongc-s and his unspeakable nets of 

tyranny can never be stopped before he comes to the 

end of his devil's luck. Our Imperial Jepan, who 

is entrusted by God, took the arm and stood up for 

justicc and humanity, w i l l , of course, inflict chasten-

ing blows persistently against Chiang
1

s Regime and it 

is our policy that we will not lay down arms until 

anti-Jepanese China is completely crushed to the 

extent that they can not st'nd up cgrin. As we 

announced many times previously the Chinese people 

are not the enemy of our Imperial J?pan. 

"Furthermore, the peoples under the Chiang 

Kai-shek
1

s regime have suffered for rncny years from 

the misgovcrnmorat end they arc still wandering on 
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the brink of starvation. 

"For the Chinese people of four hundred 

thousand are now under the protection of Japanese 

Army end they ere receiving ovw? Army' s warm symnathy." 

エ will now read passages on page 5 and 6: 

"As the situation w i l l become more serious 

with the development of the w a r , it is beyond the 

question whether the substance of the system of this 

movement has to be perfected further or n o t . 

"^e the people even though we shall engage ‘ 

in various occupations according to our divine 

duties -- such as cultivation of rice-ficlds, wood-

cutting in the forests, fishing ？long the coasts, 

beating hemmers in the factories, teaching on the 

platforms, or keeping the homes, we must • k e e p i n g 

in mind that each of us is one of the elements of 

the strong motive power in this spiritucl movement --

show our sincerity of loyalty and patriotism, assist 

and oncourage' each other, old or young and men or 

w o m e n , fill up the storehouses with products by 

making industries prosperous, endeavor to strengthen 

finance and economy by performing thrift and ssvings 

and moreover, we must be prepared, for the aggrandize-

ment of national strength required to wage long-

period w a r . 
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"With deep understrnding of the nc tional 

thought, we should clarify the absolute superiority 

of our national constitution r.nd the thought of 

HAKKO ICHIU or the unification of the world under 

one roof should be pervaded to the whole world. 

"National Mobilization must be achieved 

bcth in the ci3tc>ri£l and spiritual sense, which 

will promote the censpxcuous ever-progressing pros-

perity of the nc.tion, who must not be left cs e 

power in East Asia only but must be promoted to the 

world's Japan as the leader of the new ere and the 

proper magnanimity and full vigour of her people 

should be cultivated so thct the mission given to 

her mr.y be thoroughly fulfilled." 

That concludes that extrcct, M r . President. 

MR. COMYNS C A R R :エ now offer in evidence 

the prosecution
1

s last document, N o , 2927. 

THE PRESIDENT: Admitted on the： usual terms, 

CLERK OF THE COURT: Prosecution document 

N o . 2927 will receive exhibit No. 2282. 

(Whereupon, the document above re-

ferred to was marked prosecution's ex-

hibit No. 2282 and received in evidence.
y 

MR. COMYNS CARR: It is a rccord compiled 

end certified by the First D«Hiiobilizction Burenu 

giving the locations of ccrtr.in formations of the 
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Jy)pnose Army at certain d a t e s . They link up with 

the commands held by various accused as shown in 

their personnel r e c o r d s . I will only rend those 

which turn out to be of some importance. 

The first five relate to DOHIHARA whose 

personnel r e c o r d is exhibit 104: 

The 14th D i v i s i o n , from 1 Mr.rch 1937 to 18 

June 1938. T h e n , from A u g u s t , 1 9 3 7 onwards, "After 

Peiping-Hankow Campaign in North China stationed near 

Hsirxsisng." 

"Fifth Army: Area around Tじnロan, East 

Manchuria 5 19 May^, 193,9 to 9 June 1941. 

"Eastern District Army: Area around Tokyo; 

1 M a y 1943 to 22 March 1944, 

"Seventh Aren. A r m y j Malay, Sumatra, Java, 

Borneo; 22 March 1944 to 2 March" -- there is a. mis-

print — " 1 9 4 - 5 . 

"Twelfth Area Army: Area around Tokyo; 

25 August to 14 September 194-5." 

I now read the entry r egarding the 32nd 

Division which relates to KDIURA whose personnel 

record is exhibit 113s 

"32nd Division; Organized on 1st April 

1939； stationed nt Yenchou (60 kilometres south of 

Chinan); 9 March 1939 to 7 November 1 _ 。 " 
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エ now read the entry regarding the 14-th 

Area Army which relates to MUTO whose personnel 

record is exhibit 118: 

"14-th Area Army: Philippine Area; 5 October 

5 1944 to 2 September 

6 The next one, 37th Division, relates to 

7 SATO whose personnel record is exhibit 122: 

8
 :

 , r

37th Division: Area around Bangkok (in 

9
 course of being transferred from Northern French 

Indo-China); 7 April U 2 September 194-5." 

The last one, 1st Army, relates to UMEZU 

whose personnel r ecord is exhibit 129. 

"1st Army: 1938 May tc November, stationed 

st S h i h c h i a c h w a n g ; 1 9 3 8 - After December, stationed 

at Taiyuan." 

THE PRESIDENT: We will adjourn until helf-

past nine on Monday morning. 

We had better decide this other matter first, 

M R . HIGGINS: M r . President, the prosecution 

will now rest
f 
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M R . BLEFETT: If the Court please, I move 

that exhibit N o . 705, found on page 7,526 to 7,529 

of the record, being the testimony of TOMINAGA, be 

disregarded by the Court. This testimony was given 

on direct examination to interrogatories, end the 

witness was ordered to be produced for cross-examina-

tion by the Tribunal. 

If the Court please, we have other motions 

of like tenor concerning which v/e have not as yet had 

？.n opportunity of looking through the evidence in the 

record to point out the particular page on which the 

testimony is given. 

THE P R E S I D E N T :エ suppose the prosecution 

knew what they were doing in closing their case this 

afternoon. They could hr.vc waited until Monday 

morning. 

We will reserve consideration of that 

matter mentioned by you, M r . Blewctt. 

We will adjourn until hnlf-past nine on 

Monday morning. 

(Whereupon, at l6lヲ,an adjourn-

ment was taken until Monday, 27 January 

1947 at 0930.) 




